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Company Profile

Ranked among the nation’s top 10 public furniture
manufacturers in sales, Hooker Furniture is an 80-year-old
producer and importer of wall and entertainment systems,
office, dining,-;{é’é'ca‘sional, bedroom and upholstered leather
furniture for.the home. Our Employee Stock Ownership Plan,
in which most of our employees participate, holds more
Hooker Eurr_litﬁ‘re shares than any other shareholder of the
Company. ijtensive style selections within each of our
product nicHé“s';j;make the Company an important resource for
retailers in the upper-medium price range. The Company has
a broad distribution network that includes independent
furniture stores, department stores, specialty retailers,
national and regional chains and catalog merchants. Hooker
owns manufacturing facilities, distribution centers and
warehouses in Virginia and North Carolina, including those of
Bradington-Young, a specialist in upscale upholstered leather
and reclining seating. Hooker’s stock is listed on the Nasdaq
SmallCap Market under the symbol HOFT. Visit us on the
World Wide Web at www.hookerfurniture.com and

www.bradington-young.com.

Strategy

. To offer world-class style, quality and product
value as a complete residential wood and
upholstered furniture resource through global
sourcing encompassing company-owned plants in the
United States and a network of factories throughout
the Pacific Rim, Mexico and Central America.

. To lead our industry in sales growth and
profitability performance, providing an outstanding
investment for our shareholders and contributing to
the well-being of our employee owners, customers,
suppliers and community neighbors.

o To maintain the relationship-driven, team-
oriented and integrity-minded corporate culture
that has distinguished our company for 80 years.

Mission
To enrich the lives of the people we touch through
innovative home furnishings of exceptional value.

Core Values

* Integrity e Listening ® Innovation ¢ Caring

* Service e Honesty ¢ Citizenship ® Responsibility
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The Indigo Creek Dining Collection has been a star of
Hooker’s dramatically growing dining room business.
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Income Statement Data: 2004 2003(1) 2002 2001 2000

Netsales ......... ... ... ... ... ... ..., $345,944 $309,005 $248,346 $221,289 $251,051
Operating income . ........... ... ...... 31,166 25,752 26,319 11,077 22,947
Net INCOME « . oo ovees el 18,204 14,710 15,391 6,510 14,914
Restructuring and special charges (2) .. ... .. 994 911 745
Net income excluding restructuring

and special charges (2) .............. .. 19,198 15,621 15,391 7,255 14,914
Per Share Data:
Basic and diluted earnings per share . . ... ... $ 1.56 $ 1.28 $ 136 $ 0356 $ 1.03
Restructuring and special charges per share (2) 0.09 0.08 0.06
Earnings per share excluding restructuring

and special charges (2) .. ..... ... ... ... 1.65 1.36 1.36 0.62 1.03
Cash dividends per share . .. ... .. ... ... 0.24 0.22 0.19 0.18 0.17

Net Sales (in millions)(1) Net Income (in millions)(2)
Legend
$
Excluding $345.9
Restructuring and $309.0

Special Charges

$248.3

As Reported

2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004
Earnings Per Share (2) Cash Dividends Year End Closing Price
$1.65 Per Share Per Share
$0.24 $23.25
$0.22 $21.00
$1.36 $1.36 $0.19
2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004 2002 2003 2004

(1) In 2003, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Cherryville, N.C. based leather seating specialist Bradington-Young, LLC. Shipments of upholstered furniture
pany acq Y g sp 8 8 p P
products accounted for $57.5 million in 2004 and $44.2 million during the eleven month period following its acquisition in January 2003.

(2)  Since 2000, the Company has reduced its domestic wood furniture manufacturing capacity as a result of lower demand precipitated by competition from lower-priced imports
primarily from China. As a result, the Company has recorded charges principally for severance and asset impairment as follows: (a) in 2004, the Company recorded an after tax
charge of $994,000 ($1.6 million pretax), or $0.09 per share principally related to the closing of its Maiden, N.C. facility; (b) in 2003, the Company recorded an after tax charge
of $911,000 ($1.5 million pretax), or $0.08 per share related to the closing of its Kernersville, N.C. facility; and, (c) in 2001, the Company reduced its workforce at the
Martinsville, VA facility and recorded an after tax charge of $546,000 (3881,000 pretax) and a special after tax expense of $199,000 ($321,000 pretax) related to certain benefits
distributed under its Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”). These combined after tax charges of $745,000 {$1.2 million pretax) reduced earnings per share by $0.06 in 2001,
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2004 MESSAGE TO SHAREHOLDERS

We are pleased to report that your Company’s 80th year was a record
one for both sales and profits as we continued to transition from a domestic
wood furniture manufacturer to an international, complete home furnishings
resource in 2004. Initiatives undertaken in marketing, systems, logistics and
distribution should help sustain the sales and earnings momentum into 2005
and beyond.

In spite of inconsistent business at retail and the continued decline in
demand for domestically produced wood furniture, your Company was able
to record net sales of approximately $346 million, a 12% increase over 2003.
We finished 2004 with our 12th consecutive quarter of increased sales versus
the prior vear period. Double-digit net sales growth for both Bradington- |
Young and our imported wood, metal and marble furniture products, more
than offset an 11% decrease in shipments of domestically produced wood
furniture. Your Company was able to leverage strong sales into increased
earnings with record net income of $18.2 million, a 24% increase over 2003.
Although we are pleased with our profitability, we believe there are ample
opportunities to improve earnings in 2005 with continued growth in our
imported furniture and Bradington-Young lines. In addition, we expect to
operate our domestic wood furniture plants close to capacity, which should | 5
contribute to a more efficient cost structure for these factories.

Hooker Furniture Executive Committee:
The October closing of our Maiden, North Carolina plant better aligned Larry Rydet, CFO; Paul Toms, CEO; Doug Williams, COO

domestic wood furniture capacity with current and anticipated demand.

Increasing production at each of our three remaining wood furniture plants should lower our overhead costs as a percentage of volume,
thereby improving gross margins for domestically produced casegoods. In spite of significant price increases for raw materials and modest
wage increases, our domestic manufacturing management was able to reduce costs as a percentage of sales for 2004 when compared to the
prior year. Strong product introductions at the October 2004 market and improved retail business conditions should stabilize demand for
domestically produced wood furniture in 2005. We believe there are inherent strengths in domestic manufacturing, including shorter
product development cycles, reduced production lead times, increased customization, consistent product quality and more predictable
deliveries. We have been able to leverage those strengths to become a market leader in domestically produced home office and home
entertainment furniture. With our recent entry into the youth bedroom category, we believe we can become a viable resource in this
important category as well.

Bradington-Young's position as a leather-seating specialist in the upper-medium and high-end price points addresses an additional retail
category that has enjoyed significant growth over the last decade. In 2004, Bradington-Young began to attain the revenue level we
envisioned when Hooker acquired that business in January 2003. An enhanced sales organization and aggressive new product introductions
helped drive double-digit net sales growth for this line in 2004. There is great synergy between Bradington-Young’s seating and Hooker’s
case goods, accent and occasional furniture for family rooms, dens, and offices. We will continue to work together to develop whole home
collections and dedicated retail gallery programs, combining the strength of both companies as niche marketers.

Net sales grew by nearly 25% in our imported wood furniture line in 2004. This growth was fueled by strong petformance in the existing
categories of home office, home entertainment, and casual dining coupled with volume generated by entering new categories like metal

beds and exposed wood chairs. We also addressed product availability in our imported furniture
operation by expanding import warehouse space by over 20% and significantly growing our import
inventory.

Sales By Product Line 2003 & 2004

In the fourth quarter, we brought our first affiliated, dedicated Asian warehouse online enabling
the Company to ship containers of mixed products directly to retailers in the U.S. This development
in our container direct program allows retailers significant cost savings, while dramatically shortening
delivery times. The ability to mix over 500 different products to create a unique container for each
retailer’s needs while reducing their inventory risk puts the program within the reach of significantly
more retail customers. The program centers on a web-based ordering system that is easy to use and
available to all of our dealers. We expect this groundbreaking program to drive significant growth next
year and beyond. We believe the best way to leverage the financial strength of this Company and
differentiate our import business from the industry is through outstanding products, great value,
world-class logistics and global distribution systems.

e The composition of our Board of Directors changed during 2004. We lost significant experience
and insight with the departure of J. Clyde Hooker, Jr. We are extremely grateful for Clyde’s 58 years
R : of service and leadership as well as the example he has set for all of us to follow. We are excited about
the diverse experience and intellect that both Mark Schreiber and Henry Williamson bring as new
Board members. Mark’s distinguished career in furniture retailing will help guide our Company, while
Henry’s financial expertise is a welcomed addition as both men join our Board and serve on the Audit
and Compensation Committees.

Our greatest single asset continues to be the people of Hooker Furniture.....employee-owners who
have met every challenge in this and every year head-on. Our hourly manufacturing employees have

(Percentages have been rounded)
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2004 MESSAGE TO SHAREHOLDERS

maintained a positive attitude in spite of short workweeks, a plant closing and the cyclical nature of domestic manufacturing. They've
embraced the changes we believe are necessary to compete in today’s market place, while always looking for ways to improve product
quality, eliminate waste and become more productive. The associates at Bradington-Young have increased production and continue to
provide outstanding quality and service in a growing business. They are focused, hardworking, and committed to being the best leather
resource in the industry. Our employee-owners in imports, warehousing, distribution and administration have pulled together as a team
and done whatever is necessary to support our growth while improving the service we offer. In addition to the normal growing pains, we’ve
been able to deal with the additional demands of the industry’s anti-dumping petition and the new corporate governance requirements
brought about by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Our employees have stayed positive, focused, and willing to do whatever it takes to get
the job done. We’ve added people in merchandising and design, finance, internal audit and administration to support the ever growing and
increasingly complex responsibilities associated with a dynamic, publicly held Company. We are in the enviable position of being able to
attract and retain great people who have and will continue to sustain this Company.

Needless to say, the world and the furniture industry are changing. As with every successful company, we've had to change and
reinvent ourselves to be relevant today and in the furure. We are in the process of transitioning on numerous fronts:

* From a domestic only wood furniture manufacturer in 1987, to a complete home furnishings resource today;

* From a pure manufacturer to a marketing, logistics, manufacturing and distribution company;

* From a small quasi-public company with a limited number of shareholders, to a Nasdaq company with a market capitalization of
over $330 million at November 30, 2004 and a broader stockholder base;

* From a family-run business, to a mid-size furnishings company with over $345 million in sales in 2004 led by a well-rounded,
seasoned management team with varied skills and backgrounds supported by a strong, independent board with the diverse skills
and experience needed to help plot our future and successfully accomplish our goals.

We appreciate the confidence you have placed in each of us in this Company. We are working hard every day to improve in all
disciplines and continue to lead our industry in sales growth and profitability performance, while holding dear our core values that have
served us well throughout our first 80 years. With hard work, a little luck, and God’s blessing, we look forward to delivering another solid
performance in 2005.

Sincerely,

F?MZE)W

Paul B. Toms, Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Douglas C. Williams
President and Chief Operating Officer

o

E. Larry Ryder
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

About the Cover:

Hooker Furniture continues to be in the forefront of offering innovative solutions for today’s “wired” homes by helping consumers to
incorporate ever-changing technology into their rooms in a decor-friendly way. The Albany Park HDTV entertainment center with side
bookcases as shown on the cover exemplifies the stylish, technology-taming furnishings that Hooker offers. This entertainment center
can flex with consumers’ changing technology needs, accommodating a wide variety of popular television formats ranging from 36-inch
direct view to thin-screen HDTV and digital TVs to 42-inch rear projection table top models and selected 42-inch plasma TVs.

The Albany Park collection has proven to be one of the best-selling styles for the Company this year. Shown with the entertainment
center is the coordinating cocktail table from the Seven Seas by Hooker collection. Upholstery shown is from the Company’s Bradington-
Young upholstery lines, and has wood trim in the Albany Park finish. The Albany Park collection extends across the board in
entertainment systems, home office, wall systems, master and youth bedroom, occasional and upholstered furniture. Consumers have
responded positively to the appeal of young, urban lifestyle and country craftsmanship in the collection.

*Copyright 2005 Hooker Furniture Corporation. All rights reserved. The following are trademarks of Hooker Furniture Corporation and its affiliates: Hooker, H logo, Bradington-Young,
B-Y logo, Indigo Creek, Albany Park, Seven Seas, Intimate Home, SmartKids, SmartWorks, Metropolitan View, Swedish Accents, Sable Creek, Villa Florence, Delphi, Belle Grove,
Farrell, Barnes, Sheffield, Christopher Coleson and Mountain Laurel.

2004 Amnual Report 4 Hooker Furniture Corporation



2004 IN REVIEW

T i

Hooker Furniture Ends 80th Year with Sales Momentum

2004 marked the third straight year of double-digit annual sales gains for Hooker
Furniture, as we ended our 80th year by reporting twelve consecutive quarters of increased
sales compared to the year-earlier periods.

Hooker maintained strong top-line momentum with current products while solidifying
our position as a complete home furnishings resource by introducing the Company’s first
whole-house, 75 piece collection, Intimate Home. Hooker also entered the youth bedroom
category with the SmartKids Youth Furniture for Life line in October. Also in 2004, Hooker’s
Bradington-Young leather upholstery division hit its stride, posting double-digit sales gains
compared to 2003.

Stepping up to the challenge to compete on a higher level, we enhanced our value
proposition in the areas of logistics, systems and marketing. In logistics, Hooker developed
a groundbreaking concept that allows dealers greater flexibility and time and cost savings
when ordering imported products through our container direct program. By establishing an
affiliated, dedicated Asian warehouse and Internet-based product ordering system, Hooker
has cut average product delivery lead times dramatically with a program that will make it
easier and more economical for dealers to do business with the Company. Hooker also
added value by making it easier for our customers to access information such as order
status, stock availability and shipment dates via enhanced internet-based systems and
electronic data interface (EDI).

Hooker Enhances Marketing-Driven Approach

In addition to adding value through logistics and systems, Hooker is becoming more of
a marketing-driven company. We have set a strategic goal to develop retail floor space
dedicated to our product in “store-within-a-store” displays under the Hooker Furniture
brand such as Seven Seas Treasures boutiques and Intimate Home boutiques by Hooker
Furniture. The Company continues to invest in building brand awareness, preference and
loyalty and offering programs to help our retailers “sell-through” to the consumer. Hooker
remains an industry leader in creating new product categories such as bathroom furnishings
and plasma TV hideaway consoles to address emerging consumer trends. To reinforce this
strength, we organized our merchandising and design team in a more cohesive and defined
manner this year to maximize teamwork, promote synergy and enhance product and
program development.

Hooker’s Blended Product Strategy
Keeps Us Internationally Competitive

As one of the industry’s early adopters, beginning in 1988, of a strategy offering a blend of imported and
domestically produced products, Hooker has continued to stay ahead of the curve by refining that strategy. Going
forward, the Company plans to utilize imports in all product categories in either a starting price point role or for upscale,
higher-end looks (such as elaborate carving or hand-painting) that are outside the upper medium price point focus and
manufacturing expertise of our own wood furniture plants, enabling an expanded market reach. The Company expects
to introduce more whole-home collections, consisting of a mix of both imported and domestic products.

As Hooker enters the midpoint of the first decade of the 21st Century, the Company is successfully making the
transition to a modern, fast growing, global corporation while retaining the adaptability, flexibility and ‘personal touch’
of our small family-oriented company roots. The results have benefited the shareholders, employee-owners, suppliers
and local communities and enriched the lives of the people we touch through innovative home furnishings of exceptional
value.
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The Metropolitan View wall unit, a successful October 2004 introduction, exemplifies Hooker’s diversification into more
contemporary, youthful styles and its emphasis on entertainment furniture to accommodate 40-60 inch DLP/LCD digital and
thin-screen plasma TVs.

2004 Ananual Report 6 Hooker Furniture Corporation



| In October 2004, Hooker entered the vibrant youth
bedroom market in a move that further solidifies our
evolution as a complete, global home furnishings
resource and provides additional avenues of growth for
both domestic production and imports. At the Fall
| International Home Furnishings Market, Hooker
launched the SmartKids — Youth Furniture for Life brand
with the Swedish Accents and Albany Park collections.
j§ Long known as a niche player, Hooker intends to bring
j the same strengths to youth that it does to other niches
| such as home entertainment: a broad selection of styles
/| and finishes, attention to functionality and durability,
technology-taming electronics capability and quick
delivery.

| SmartKids is merchandised with a variety of age-specific
pieces to grow with the four stages of a youth’s life:
child (ages 3-8); “tween” (ages 9-12); teen (ages 13-19);
and young adult, ages 20-plus. SmartKids is marketed as
high-quality, classic furniture that will last through the

The Swedish Accents group is a feminine collection with evolution from childhood to adulthood and beyond, making the
Scandinavian design influences in the new SmartKids- furnishings a good product choice for second bedrooms and
Youth Furniture for Life line. vacation homes.
’ e - In master bedroom, the Albany Park collection sprinted ahead to
- become the Company’s number one selling group in less than a
year. Decorator metal beds are another bright spot in the

bedroom assortment, as they continue to add incremental
business and opportunities to penetrate new types of retailers.

Lot S SmartKids.

Youth Furniture for Life

The Albany Park group, part of the SmartKids youth line,
has its style influence from the best-selling master bedroom
group of the same name.

Decorator metal beds, a
new category for Hooker,
attract new cusiomers
with a variety of metals
and finishes.

The Sable Creek bedroom group, offering an upscale hand-painted
finish, has quickly become one of Hooker’s best-selling bedrooms.
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HOOKER INTRODUCES FIRST WHOLE HO. BCTION

“Follow Your Heart Hotne”

® WA AN

In October 2004, Hooker
introduced Intimate Home, our first
whole house, 75-piece collection,
including bedroom, dining room,
accents, home office, home
entertainment and upholstered
furniture. The collection, in updated
romantic styling with European
influences, was developed in
partnership with magazine editor
and author Nancy Lindemeyer, who
is considered an authority on
romantic style and home-related
consumer trends. The collection was
well received by retailers, many of
whom will display the group in 700
to 1,000 square foot “store-within-a-
store” Intimate Home boutiques.

The Intimate Home sleigh bed in warm cherry finish was one of the best-placed

pieces in the collection at the Fall International Home Furshishings Market. Intimate Home captures the

romantic allure of the past, yet with
a modern touch. When choosing
these products, consumers are
invited to think of the private joys,
family gatherings and memories that
create the wonder of home to them.
Intimate Home is designed to help
consumers create what they really
want: a home that reflects their
inner compass ... a home that
enriches everyone who enters its
doors ... a home where they can
find an intimate connection in the

8| The Serendipity Server, offered in butter cream  midst of their fast-paced lives.

and warm cherry finishes, is a signature piece
|| of the collection, inviting consumers to gracious
living.

l HOOKXER FURNITURE }
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Inn October, Hooker continued its leadershiy in developing
innovative hideaway consoles for plasma TVs, introducing
five styles of a plasma lift console that are more compact
and contemporary in styling than previous inroductions.

The updated Neoclassic styling and contrast of rich
cherry with inlaid ebony veneers caught the eye of
retailers, making the Delphi home office a successful
October 2004 introduction.

The carving, style and finish of Villa Florence gained

in popularity with consumers this year, making the
group our top-selling home office style for 2004.

2004 Annual Report

Helping Consumers Integrate Technology in Today’s “Wired” Home

With many homes today containing more than one TV and
one or more computers, along with all the related electronic
accessories, consumers are faced with the dilemma of
incorporating technology into their homes while maintaining a
warm, neat and stylish environment. Hooker continues to lead the
way in offering decor-friendly solutions for home office and home
entertainment to help consumers manage wiring and cords,
organize components and accommodate the latest television and
computer formats.

In home entertainment, Hooker’s line evolved in several key
ways in 2004. First, the Company has ventured into more
transitional and contemporary styles to appeal to younger
consumers while maintaining our strength in traditional American
and European styling. Second, we have focused our efforts on
developing entertainment centers and wall units to accommodate
increasingly popular DLP/LCD digital and thin screen plasma TVs
in 40 to 60 inch-plus sizes. Hooker’s innovative hideaway “pop-up”
consoles feature a mechanism that conceals the plasma TV, then
lifts it to the surface for viewing via remote control, sparking
growth in entertainment centers in 2004.

Hooker has observed that, in many cases, consumers want to
show off these sleekly-styled thin and flat screen TVs rather than
hiding them, making development of consoles and other “open”
entertainment solutions important, while continuing to offer
pocket door units that hide the TVs, an historic design strength for
Hooker. Additionally, Hooker has developed new styles in home
theater wall units that have a custom-built look by incorporating
finished back panels, light bridges and stylish molding.

Home office growth was anchored by strong demand for
executive office and computer desk furniture, with the Villa
Florence and Belle Grove styles in the forefront.

9 Hooker Furniture Cotporation




Growing Sales Through an Expanded Dealer Base, Sales Force and Product Line

Bradington-Young ended the year on a roll with a 26% sales
increase in the fourth quarter compared to last year’s fourth
quarter. The year-end increase helped Hooker’s growing upholstery
line expand from 14% of total Company sales in 2003 to nearly
17% of total Company revenues in 2004.

Bradington-Young achieved these gains through an expanded
dealer base, a four-fold increase in the number of sales reps since
January 2003 and by designing and developing successful new
product categories such as leather club chairs and home theater
seating. Bradington-Young has also benefited from a consistent
focus on superior quality leathers, reclining and motion frames and
workmanship. More recently, Bradington-Young expanded its
upholstery offerings in medium price points by expanding its price
and style spectrum through foreign sourcing marketed under the
name of Seven Seas Seating.

Highlights of the year include a record April 2004 market, the
opening of the Seven Seas Seating warehouse in late July in North
Carolina and increased production schedules for domestically
manufactured products in the Cherryville and Hickory, N.C. plants.

The Farrell reclining chair offers a clean and classic design.

The Barnes sofa group, in the higher end
of the Seven Seas Seating collection, offers
exceptional value in quality and design.

The Sheffield sofa, a top-seller for
Bradington-Young, is a statement piece.
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Seven Seas by Hooker Furniture continues to
develop new product categories, providing an avenue
for incremental sales for the Company and for our
retail partners. In 2004, Seven Seas added
complementary linen armoires to our growing line of
bathroom-compatible designer sink cabinets. These
“bathroom highboys” contain storage shelves for
soaps, candles and toiletries, a deep towel drawer,
washcloth drawers, a jewelry drawer and a half-
length interior mirror. With both of these powder
room categories, Hooker has successfully penetrated
an additional room of the house for wood furniture
at an opportune time, as consumers have a new
interest in decorating their bathrooms as a private
retreat.

In another highlight for 2004, Christopher
Coleson, a fine line of upscale accent furniture
previously founded by Bradington-Young, was
incorporated into Seven Seas at the upper-end.
Throughout the year, sales of Christopher Coleson
ramped up steadily.

One of the most important developments for
Seven Seas in 2004 came in the area of logistics, with
Hooker developing a groundbreaking concept that
allows dealers greater flexibility and time and cost
savings when ordering imported products through
our container direct program. By establishing an
affiliated, dedicated Asian warehouse and Internet-
based product ordering system, Hooker has cut
average product delivery lead times dramatically
under this program in a move that will make it easier
and more economical for dealers to do business with
the Company.

2004 Annual Report
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By designing a new line of linen armoires to coordinate with our
existing designer sink cabinets, Hooker has led the way in
developing the category of bathroom furnishings, successfully
penetrating an additional room of the house for wood furniture.

Christopher Coleson, a fine line of upscale accent furniture
within the Seven Seas collection, offers distinctive hardwood
and mahogany solids and hand finishes.

Hooker Furniture Corporation




DINING ROOM

The Mountain Laurel wine cabinet is one of several
eclectic pieces tn the collection, and one of a number of
wine cabinets offered by the Company.

Ba—

Dramatic sales growth throughout the year helped dining
room achieve the distinction of being the fastest-growing
casegoods product category in the Company for 2004.

After several years of building our dining room assortment,
we have established the Company as a key casual dining
resource in wood, metal and mixed medium styles in the upper-
medium price level. Retailers are also looking to Hooker for
formal dining room in selected styles.

The container-direct portion of Hooker’s import dining room
business has experienced rapid growth, benefiting from bringing
an affiliated, dedicated Asian warehouse and Internet-based
product container ordering system on line late in the third
quarter.

The Mountain Laurel dining group introduced in April was
one the most successful dining room introductions in the
Company’s history. The Country French-styled Mountain Laurel
collection contains the best of both formal and casual dining
elements. On the formal side, the group offers a large dining
table that easily seats 10, along with a coordinating china cabinet.
On the casual side, the group offers bistro tables and bar stools, a
kitchen island and three wine cabinets. The Mountain Laurel
group, and the Indigo Creek group in hand-painted black finish,
are among the outstanding performers in Hooker’s growing
dining room stable.

- ot % . o
. W ,, . i R —

The Mountain Laurel island bar conceals two surprise features. First, a lower pull-out shelf extends the serving surface. Second, a
hinged table top opens and then rotates to expand the dining surface. With the 1able 1op closed, the island surface measures 42 x 27,
and is loaded with functions such as bookcases, a deep drawer and storage doors. Opening the hinged top transforms the island into
a 56 x 27 hip casual dining table, allowing six people to gather comfortably around the island.

2004 Annual Report
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CORPORATE DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
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Hooker Furniture Board of Directors, left to right: Doug Willia

Dudley Walker, Paul Toms, Bob Taylor, Chris Beeler

Directors and Officers of Hooker Furniture:
PAUL B. TOMS, JR.

Director, Chief Executive Officer

and Chairman of the Board

DOUGLAS C. WILLIAMS
Director, President and Chief Operating Officer

W. CHRISTOPHER BEELER, JR.
Director, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer -
Virginia Mirror Company and Virginia Glass Products

JOHN L. GREGORY, Il
Director, Shareholder, Officer and Director - Young, Haskins,
Masnn, Gregory & Smith, P.C.

A. FRANK HOOKER, JR.
Director, Retired President and Chief Operating Officer
of Hooker Furniture Corporation

MARK F. SCHREIBER
Director, Retired President and
Chief Operating Officer, Star Furniture

ROBERT A. TAYLOR
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Global Coating
Consultants, LLC and Executive Partner, Butler University

L. DUDLEY WALKER
Director, Retired Chairman of the Board of VF Knitwear, Inc.

HENRY G. WILLIAMSON, JR.

Direcior, Retired Chief Operating Officer, BBET Corporation and
Branch Banking and Trust Company of North Carolina, South
Carolina and Virginia.

E. LARRY RYDER

Executive Vice President - Finance and Administration
and Chief Financial Officer
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ark Schreiber, John Gregory, Henry Williamson,

MICHAEL P. SPECE
Executive Vice President - Merchandising and Design

RAYMOND T. HARM
Senior Vice President - Sales

HENRY P. LONG, JR.
Senior Vice President - Merchandising and Design

LEWIS A. CANTER, II
Vice President - Manufacuring

KENNETH E. WILLIAMS
Vice President - Merchandising

JACK R. PALMER
Vice President - Human Resources

R. TALMAGE FISH, JR.
Chief Information Officer

CHARLENE W. BOWLING
Vice-President - Information Services

ROBERT W. SHERWOOD
Vice President - Credit, Secretary and Treasurer

R. GARY ARMBRISTER
Chief Accounting Officer

Officers of Bradington-Young:
C.SCOTT YOUNG
President and Chief Executive Officer

CRAIG S. YOUNG
Vice President - Sales

BENJAMIN S. CAUSEY
Vice President - Finance and Administration
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United States

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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Hooker Furniture Corporation
Part1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

Incorporated in Virginia in 1924, Hooker Furniture Corporation (the “Company”) is the nation's fourteenth largest source for furniture,
according to Furniture/Today, a leading trade publication, and is ranked among the nation’s top 10 publicly traded furniture producers
based on 2003 furniture shipments to retailers in the U.S. The 80-year old Company is a leading manufacturer of residential wood and
upholstered leather furniture and an importer of furniture manufactured from wood, metal, marble and other materials. Major product
categories include home theater, wall units and entertainment systems, home office, casual and formal dining, bedroom, youth
bedroom, bathroom, accent pieces, occasional and upholstered leather and fabric furniture for the home. Extensive style and finish
selections within each of the product niches make the Company a comprehensive resource for retailers primarily targeting the upper-
medium price range. The Company’s principal customers are retailers of residential home furnishings who are broadly dispersed
throughout North America. Customers include independent furniture stores, department stores, specialty retailers, catalog merchants
and national and regional chains.

The Company markets its domestically produced and imported wood and metal furniture under the name Hooker Furniture. A sample
of Hooker Fumniture collections includes Intimate Home, PGA TOUR® Home, Seven Seas Collection, SmartWorks Home Office,
SmartKids-Youth, Albany Park Collection and the Marlborough Collection. Under its Bradington-Young brand, the Company offers
a comprehensive line of upholstered leather furniture targeted at the upper and upper-medium price ranges. Bradington-Young,
acquired in January 2003, offers a broad variety of residential leather and fabric upholstered furniture, and specializes in upscale
leather reclining and motion chairs and sofas, executive desk chairs, club chairs and stationary upholstered furniture. With the
addition of upholstered furniture products and new furniture collections introduced in 2004, the Company believes it has established
itself as a comprehensive resource for retailers by offering furniture products and collections for virtually every room of the home.
The Company finished 2004 with strong momentum by marking its 12" consecutive quarter of increased net sales compared with
prior year quarters, and third consecutive year of double-digit net sales growth.

Hooker’s Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”), in which substantially all employees participate, holds more Hooker Furniture
shares than any other shareholder of the Company (27.5% of the Company’s outstanding common stock as of November 30, 2004).
The Company has approximately 1,700 employees and owns or operates seven manufacturing facilities,a supply plant, three
showrooms, a corporate headquarters office and five warehouses and distribution facilities located in Virginia and North Carolina
totaling over three million square feet. The Company owns or leases facilities in Cherryville, Hickory, High Point, Pleasant Garden
and Woodleaf, N.C. and Martinsville and Roanoke, Va. The Company also utilizes a warehouse and distribution center located in
China that is owned and operated by third parties. The Company's stock is listed on the NASDAQ SmallCap Market under the
symbol HOFT. You may visit the Company’s websites on the World Wide Web at www.hookerfurniture.com and www.bradington-

young.com.

By emphasizing continuous improvement in its design, manufacturing, marketing and distribution processes, the Company offers
competitive advantages to its customers such as innovative new product introductions, a variety of leading styles and finishes,
attention to functionality and durability. These features allow the Company to provide quality products at prices that provide value to
the customer. The Company also offers technology-taming home entertainment and home office solutions, easy ordering for all
products, quick delivery, reduced lead times on domestic products, extensive inventory and a direct-to-retailer shipping option (the
“Container Direct Program”) on imported products, thus reducing inventory investment and risk for retailers.

The Company’s mission is to “enrich the lives of the people we touch through innovative home furnishings of exceptional value,”
with a strategy of:

e Offering world-class style, quality and product value as a complete residential wood, metal and upholstered furniture
resource through global sourcing encompassing Company-owned plants in the United States, an affiliated Asian warehouse
and distribution center, and a network of third-party owned factories throughout the Pacific Rim, Mexico and Central
America.

¢ Leading our industry in sales growth and profitability performance, thereby providing an outstanding investment for our
shareholders and contributing to the well-being of our employee owners, customers, suppliers and community neighbors.

e Nurturing the relationship-driven, team-oriented and integrity-minded corporate culture that has distinguished our Company
for 80 years.




Products and Styles

The Company’s product lines cover most major style categories, such as European and American traditional, transitional, urban,
country/casual/cottage, Scandinavian and romantic designs. The Company offers furniture in a variety of materials, such as various
types of wood, veneer, rattan, leather, twill, fabric, brass and other metals, often accented with marble, stone, slate, ceramic, glass and
hand-painted finishes. Products are designed either as individual pieces, or as a complement to furniture suites, lines or whole home
collections. The Company believes that the diversity of its product lines enables it to anticipate and respond quickly to changing
consumer preferences, and offers retailers a comprehensive furniture resource principally in the upper-medium price range. The
Company intends to continue expanding each of its product lines. Management believes, based on industry summaries of the top 25
sources for the U.S. market, that the Company’s sales growth rates have been higher than the industry average for this group since
2002, and as a result that its market share has increased during that period. Based on this increasing market acceptance, the Company
believes that its products represent good value and that the style and quality of its furniture compare favorably with more premium-
priced products.

The percentages of net sales provided by each of its major product categories for the last three years are as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Wood and metal furniture products .........c.coovcerenieinrice v 83% 86% 100%
Upholstered furniture products .........co.oeoveeeinciennns st 17 _14 -

TOtAL oo e et es e 100% 100% 100%

The Company designs and develops new product styles semi-annually to replace discontinued styles and, if desired, to expand its product
lines and enter new categories. The Company’s product design process begins with the marketing team identifying customer needs and
conceptualizing product ideas. Product ideas often consist of a group or collection of furniture pieces related by their style, finish, leather
or fabric covering. A variety of sketches are produced, usually by independent designers, from which prototype furniture pieces are built.
The Company invites its independent sales representatives and a representative group of dealers to view and critique the prototypes.
Based on this input, the Company may modify the designs. Then, the Company’s engineering department or one or more of the
Company’s off-shore suppliers, prepares a sample for actual full-scale production. The Company generally introduces its new product
styles at the fall and spring International Home Furnishings Market in High Point, North Carolina.

In October 2004, the Company introduced a new product category, SmartKids-Youth Furniture for Life, representing Hooker’s debut into
the growing youth furniture market. The SmartKids line is positioned to offer styling and premium quality. A feminine group, Swedish
Accents, offers Scandinavian design influences and a white finish. A masculine group, Albany Park, provides a young urban Efestyle
look in rogue cherry veneers inspired by one of Hooker’s best-selling master bedroom collections of the same name.

During 2004, the Company expanded its casual dining category and entered new product categories in both imported and domestically
produced products. In the imported line the Company introduced “linen armoires,” which are bathroom highboys that store towels, linens
and soaps. These armoires were designed to complement the Company’s line of imported designer sink cabinets. Also in 2004, the
Company introduced a new domestically-produced home entertainment center to accommodate the popular digital and thin-screen plasma
televisions in 40 to 60-plus inch sizes. The Company’s new “all-in-one” format of thin-screen lift consoles, introduced in October 2004,
is compact and contemporary in styling. In addition, Bradington-Young expanded its product line in both style and price, by offering
imported, medium-priced products marketed under the Company’s new Seven Seas Seating line. Bradington-Young’s domestically-
produced leather club chairs, a line that Bradington-Young entered only one year ago, now accounts for a growing portion of its net sales.

From time to time, the Company will partner with third parties to design and market products under mutually beneficial licensing
agreements. In October 2004, the Company introduced its first complete whole home furniture collection called “Intimate Home,” which
is expected to be shipped beginning in April 2005. This 75piece collection includes bedroom, dining room, home office, home
entertainment, accent and occasional furniture under the Hooker name, as well as upholstered and leather seating under the Bradington-
Young name. The collection was developed in collaboration with Nancy Lindemeyer, founding editor of Victoria magazine, former
senior editor of Better Homes and Gardens magazine and author or editor of numerous home decorating books. Ms. Lindemeyer is
regarded in the industry to be an authority on romantic style and home-related trends. The collection, in updated romantic styling with
European influences, includes traditional and transitional pieces and is scaled for today’s home. In addition, the Company has introduced
new products for its licensed “PGA TOUR® Home Collection by Hooker Furniture” each year since its introduction in 2001 and has
renewed its licensing agreement with the PGA TOUR® through 2007.



Distribution

The general marketing practice followed in the furniture industry is to exhibit products at international and regional furniture markets. In
the spring and fall of each year, a nine-day furniture market is held in High Point, North Carolina, which is attended by most retail buyers
and is regarded by the industry as the international market. The Company utilizes 107,000 square feet of showroom space at the High
Point market to introduce new products, increase sales of existing products, and test ideas for future furniture products. The Company’s
principal customers are retailers of residential home furnishings who are broadly dispersed throughout North America.

The Company sells its furniture through over 100 independent sales representatives to:

e independent furniture retailers such as Gabberts of Minneapolis and Dallas, Louis Shanks of Texas and to Berkshire Hathaway-
owned companies Star Furniture, Jordan’s Furniture, Nebraska Furniture Mart and RC Willey;

e catalog merchandisers such as the Horchow Collection (a unit of Neiman Marcus);
e national chain stores such as Z Gallerie;
e regional chain stores such as Raymour & Flanigan, Robb & Stuckey and Haverty’s; and

¢  department stores such as Federated and Dillard’s.

The Company believes this broad network reduces its exposure to regional recessions, and allows it to capitalize on emerging trends in
channels of distribution.

The Company offers tailored merchandising programs to address each channel of distribution. A key distribution development began in
2003, when the Company merged its Hooker and Bradington-Young sales forces, providing more than a four-fold increase in the number
of professional sales representatives offering Bradington-Young products. This integration fueled significant Bradington-Young sales
volume growth and the addition of nearly 800 new retail accounts carrying the upholstery line since the Company acquired that business
in 2003. The Company believes that its upholstery business will continue to experience strong growth in the future and is well positioned
to leverage additional opportunities for synergy in merchandising and marketing. Another important development which began in 2003
and continued in 2004 for imported furniture products was the introduction and expansion of a retail boutique program calledSeven Seas
Treasures. Currently, over 350 stores dedicate 400 to 600 square feet of store space to display the Company’s Seven Seas Treasures line
of imported upscale, functional accents and occasional pieces, including hand-painted furniture, carved writing desks, casual dining
furniture, tables and chests.

The Company sold to over 4,900 customers during 2004. In addition to the Company’s broad domestic customer base, the Company also
sells to a limited international market. Approximately 3% of the Company’s net sales in 2004 were to international customers. No single
customer accounted for more than 4% of the Company’s net sales in 2004. No significant part of the Company’s business is dependent
upon a single customer, the loss of which would have a material effect on the business of the Company. However, the loss of several of
the Company’s major customers could have a material impact on the business of the Company.

The Company schedules production of domestically manufactured wood furniture and purchases imported furniture based upon actual
and anticipated orders and product acceptance at furniture markets. The Company strives to provide domestically produced and imported
furniture on-demand for its dealers. During 2004, the Company shipped 85% of domestic wood product orders and 67% of imported
product orders within 30 days of order receipt. It is the Company’s policy and industry practice to allow order cancellation up to the time
of shipment; therefore customer orders for domestic wood and imported furniture are not firm.

Upholstered product orders are predominantly custom built and shipped within one to seven weeks after the order is received.
Upholstered furniture orders cannot be cancelled once the leather or fabric is cut.

The Company’s backlog of unshipped orders for all of its products amounted to an equivalent of approximately five weeks of sales as of
November 30, 2004. Most orders are normally shipped within one month. During 2004, less than 14% of orders for new and existing
products shipped in more than 60 days after order receipt. Over the last three years, 93% of all orders booked were ultimately shipped.
Management considers orders and backlogs to be one helpful indicator of sales for the upcoming 30-day period, but because of the
Company’s quick delivery and its cancellation policy, management does not consider order backlogs to be a reliable indicator of expected
long-term business.




Manufacturing

The Company’s domestic wood and upholstered furniture manufacturing strategy is to manufacture products that are on the leading edge
of changing consumer demand for the home, such as home theater, wall units, home office, computer furniture, traditional and youth
bedroom, and reclining and stationary leather seating. The Company stresses strong customer participation in developing new products
such as the Intimate Home Collection, Bradington-Young club chairs, SmartKids-Youth Fumiture for Life, Albany Park and
Marlborough Collections, and thin-screen TV “pop-up” lift consoles, as well as improving and expanding existing product collections.
The Company believes strongly in employee involvement and empowerment, with employee and management teams working and
communicating in all areas of manufacturing to continually improve production processes and emphasize quality.

In order to enhance efficiency and profitability of domestic wood furniture production, the Company has emphasized the alignment of
each of its product lines to the manufacturing strengths of each of its three wood furniture production facilities. However, each facility
continues to maintain the flexibility to produce multiple product lines, allowing the Company to shift products between facilities in order
to balance capacity with demand. The Company communicates constantly with key suppliers in monitoring and addressing quality and
fimely delivery, a process that enables both the Company and its suppliers to respond quickly to constantly changing customer needs. To
meet customer expectations of just-in-time product delivery, the Company’s strategy has been to strike a balance between using shorter,
more frequent production runs for high-demand products and maintaining adequate inventory levels for lower-demand furniture.

The Company’s domestic wood furniture manufacturing operations have suffered from lower demand and significant declines in
volume for its bedroom, home office and home entertainment products principally due to competition from lower-priced imported
furniture products. These declines led to the closing of the Company’s Maiden, N.C. facility in October 2004, the closing of its
Kernersville, N.C. facility in August 2003 and short work schedules at most of its wood manufacturing facilities over much of the time
period since 2001.

The Company’s upholstered furniture manufacturing strategy for its four upholstered furniture production facilities is to be a
comprehensive leather resource for retailers positioned in the upper and upper-medium price ranges. Bradington-Young offers a
comprehensive selection of over 250 leather covers. In addition to specializing in leather, Bradington-Young also specializes in
motion seating, with about 50% of its products falling into this category.

The upholstery manufacturing process begins with the cutting of leather or fabric and the cutting and precision machining of frames.
Precision frames are important for motion furniture to operate properly. Finally, the cut leather or fabric upholstery, frames, foam and
other materials are assembled to build reclining chairs, executive seating, stationary seating and multiple seat reclining furniture.

The Company presently operates approximately 1.5 million square feet of manufacturing capacity for its domestic wood and
upholstered furniture production in North Carolina and Virginia. The Company considers its machinery and equipment to be
generally modern and well maintained.

Raw Materials

The principal materials used by the Company in manufacturing its wood furniture products include lumber, veneer, plywood,
particleboard, hardware, glue, finishing material, glass products and fasteners. The Company uses a variety of species of lumber,
including poplar, cherry, maple, oak and pine.

Significant materials used in manufacturing upholstered furniture products include leather or fabric, foam, wooden frames and metal
mechanisms. Most of the leather is imported from Italy, Germany, Brazil and China. Leather is purchased as full hides, which are cut
and sewn by Bradington-Young and also as pre-cut and sewn hides processed by the vendor to pattern specifications.

The Company believes that its sources for raw materials are adequate and that it is not dependent on any one supplier. The Company’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 14% of its supply purchases for its domestic furniture manufacturing operations in
2004.

Imported Products

The Company believes that the best way to leverage its financial strength and differentiate its import business from the industry is
through cooperative design, outstanding products, great value, easy ordering, and world-class logistics and global distribution systems.
Hooker Furniture imports finished furniture in a variety of styles and materials, such as wood, veneer, rattan, leather, twill, fabric,
brass and other metals, often accented with marble, stone, slate, ceramic, glass and hand-painted finishes. Product lines include home
theater wall units and entertainment centers, home office and computer furniture, occasional tables, consoles, chests, casual and formal
dining, wine cabinets and bars, bedroom and youth bedroom furniture, designer sink cabinets and linen armoires, stationary seating
and a variety of accent items. Imported furniture accounted for 53% of net sales in 2004 and 48% of net sales in 2003.
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The Company markets products under the names of Hooker Furniture (such as the Seven Seas Collection by Hooker Furniture and
PGA TOUR® Home by Hooker Fumniture) and Bradington-Young. A line of Bradington-Young imported leather stationary seating,
introduced during 2004 and marketed under the Seven Seas Seating name, allows the Company to target medium-level price points in
the upholstery market. The Company distributes imported furniture to retailers through its domestic warchouses and distribution
centers, through its affiliated Asian distribution center and warehouse and through its Container Direct Program.

In the 2004 fourth quarter, the Company entered into a warchousing and distribution arrangement in China, with its largest supplier of
imported products. The facility is owned by the supplier and operated by that supplier and a third party utilizing a state of the art
global warehouse management system that frequently updates the Company’s central inventory management and order processing
systems. This Asian distribution center operates as a consolidation point for a wide selection of the Company’s imported products
manufactured by this supplier, and enables the Company to ship containers of mixed products directly to retailers in the U.S. under its
Container Direct Program. The ability to mix over 500 different products to create a unique container for each retailer’s needs while
reducing the retailer’s inventory risk and investment puts the program within the reach of significantly more furniture dealers. The
program features an internet-based product ordering system that is easy to use and available to all of the Company’s dealers. The
Company developed this novel program to dramatically shorten delivery times while providing significant cost savings for retailers.
The Company expects that this groundbreaking program will drive significant sales growth next year and beyond.

The Company imports products primarily from China, the Philippines, Mexico, Indonesia, Vietnam, Honduras and Guatemala through
12 agents representing over 70 factories. Because of the large number and diverse nature of the foreign factories from which the
Company sources its imported products, the Company has flexibility in the placement of products in any particular factory or country.
Factories located in China have become an important resource for the Company. In 2004, imported products sourced from China
accounted for approximately 44% of import purchases, and the primary factory in China from which the Company directly sources
product accounted for approximately 16% of the Company’s worldwide purchases of imported products. A sudden disruption in the
Company’s supply chain from this factory, or from China in general, could significantly impact the Company’s ability to fill customer
orders for products manufactured at that factory or in that country. If such a disruption were to occur, the Company believes that it
would have sufficient inventory to adequately meet demand for a three to four-month period. The Company believes that it could,
most likely at higher cost, source most of the products currently sourced in China from factories in other countries and could produce
certain of those products domestically at its own factories. However, supply disruptions and delays on selected items could occur for
a six to nine month period. If the Company were to be unsuccessful in obtaining those products from other sources, then a sudden
disruption in the Company’s supply chain from its largest import wood furniture supplier, or from China in general, could have a
short-term material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations. Given the capacity availability in China and other low cost
producing countries, the Company believes the risks from these potential supply disruptions are manageable.

In December 2003, the Christopher Coleson line of wood, bronze and brass accent furniture, originated by Bradington-Young, was
focused into an upscale presentation of approximately 100 products and incorporated into the Company’s imported wood furniture
line. The Christopher Coleson line has its own catalog and is marketed at the upper price range of the Seven Seas Collection.
Christopher Coleson accent pieces are organized by style into four collections, such as the Thomas Cartier Collection which offers
distinctive accent pieces of mahogany solids and veneers with the finest hand finishes. These products are exclusively sourced from
Vietnam, and positioned as a private-label group targeted for distinctive style.

Seven Seas Seating, the Company’s new line of imported stationary seating, is growing rapidly despite its recent introduction. The
Company is preparing additional promotional efforts to support this product line, and has leased 66,000 square feet of warehouse
space to manage distribution of this inventory.

The Company has imported products from foreign manufacturers since 1988. The Company’s imported furniture business is subject
to the usual risks inherent in importing products manufactured abroad, including, but not limited to, supply disruptions and delays,
currency exchange rate fluctuations, economic and political fluctuations and instability, as well as the laws, policies, and actions of
foreign governments and the United States affecting trade, including tariffs.

For imported products, the Company generally negotiates firm pricing with its foreign suppliers, for periods typically of up to one
year. The Company accepts the exposure to exchange rate movements beyond these negotiated periods without using derivative
financial instruments to manage this risk. The majority of the Company’s imports are purchased from countries such as China, whose
currencies have been pegged to the U.S. Dollar, negating much of the Company’s exposure to foreign currency fluctuation. However,
in November 2004, China’s top financial officials announced that fundamental preparations had been made to allow the Yuan’s
exchange rate to fluctuate on a limited basis without regard to changes in the U.S. Dollar. These and other remarks intensified market
speculation that China may adopt a market-oriented currency and allow the Yuan to fluctuate in value relative to the U.S. Dollar.

Since the Company transacts its imported product purchases in U.S. Dollars, a relative decline in the value of the U.S. Dollar could
increase the cost of the Company’s imported products and adversely impact sales volume and profit margin during affected periods.
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Conversely, a relative increase in the value of the U.S. Dollar could decrease the cost of imported products and favorably impact sales
volume and profit margin during affected periods. However, the Company generally expects to reflect substantially all of the effect of
any price changes from suppliers in the price it charges for its imported products. See also “Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk.”

Competition

The furniture industry is highly competitive and includes a large number of foreign and domestic manufacturers and importers, none of
which dominates the market. The markets in which the Company competes include a large number of relatively small and medium-sized
manufacturers; however, certain competitors of the Company have substantially greater sales volumes and financial resources than the
Company. The Company also competes with foreign manufacturers, many of which have substantially lower production cost,
particularly lower labor cost, compared to the Company. Competitive factors in the upper-medium and upper price ranges include style,
price, quality, delivery, design, service and durability. The Company believes that its long-standing customer relationships, ease of
ordering, quick delivery, responsive service, financial strength, experienced management and consistent support of its stylish, high
quality, value-priced product lines are important competitive advantages.

In November 2004 and January 2005, the U.S. Department of Commerce imposed tariffs on Chinese companies for wood bedroom
products exported to the U.S. These rates were approved in a subsequent action by the International Trade Commission, based on
measured damage to the U.S. furniture manufacturing industry caused by illegal dumping.

Domestically produced wood bedroom furniture accounted for 3.4%, and imported wood bedroom furniture accounted for 3.7%, of the
Company’s 2004 net sales. The Company does not expect that the tariffs on wood bedroom furniture imported from China will have a
material adverse affect on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition. However, if deterioration in trade relations betweer.
the United States and China, or other factors, were to lead to significant short-term disruptions in the supply of imported product from
China, such disruptions could, as discussed above under the heading “Imported Products,” have a short-term material adverse effect on
the Company’s results of operations. Given the Company’s domestic manufacturing capability as well as the excess manufacturing
capacity available in other low-cost producing countries, the Company believes this supply disruption risk is manageable.

Employees

As of November 30, 2004, the Company had approximately 1,700 employees. None of the Company’s employees is represented by a
labor union. The Company considers its relations with its employees to be good.

The Company sponsors the Hooker Furniture Corporation ESOP, a retirement plan that enables eligible employees to share in the growth
of the Company by accumulating an ownership interest in the Company’s common stock. Substantially all employees participate in the
ESOP, which held 27.5% of the Company’s outstanding common stock as of November 30, 2004.

Patents and Trademarks

The Hooker Furniture and Bradington-Young trade names represent many years of continued business. The Company believes these
trade names are well recognized and associated with quality and service in the furniture industry. The Company also owns a number of
patents, trademarks and licenses, none of which is considered to be material to the Company.

Hooker, H logo, Bradington-Young, B-Y logo, Albany Park, Christopher Coleson, Intimate Home, Marlborough, Seven Seas,
SmartKids, SmartWorks and Swedish Accents are trademarks of Hooker Furniture Corporation. All rights reserved.

Governmental Regulations

The Company is subject to federal, state, and local laws and regulations in the areas of safety, health, and environmental pollution
controls. Compliance with these laws and regulations has not in the past had any material effect on the Company’s earnings, capital
expenditures, or competitive position; however, the effect of compliance in the future cannot be predicted. Management believes that the
Company is in material compliance with applicable federal, state and local safety, health and environmental regulations. The Company is
subject to provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”) pertaining to the review, documentation and testing
of internal control over financial reporting and other corporate governance matters. Compliance with the regulations promulgated under
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act has led to an increase in professional service fees and has required substantial efforts by internal personnel. Asa
result, compliance with these regulations has had a material impact on the Company’s earnings for 2004 as well as on operations during
the year. However, the Company expects internal control to be more robust as a result of these efforts, and expects these compliance
costs to decline in 2005. ‘



Additional Information

You may visit us online at www.hookerfurniture.com and www.bradington-young.com. The Company makes available, free of
charge through its website, its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and other
documents as soon as practical after filing or furnishing the material to the Securities and Exchange Commission. A free copy of the
Company’s Form 10-K may also be obtained by contacting Robert W. Sherwood, Vice President - Credit, Secretary and Treasurer at
the corporate offices of the Company.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements made in this report, including “Item 1 - Business” and “Item 7 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis,” are not
based on historical facts, but are forward-looking statements. These statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking
terminology such as “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “would,” or “anticipates,” or the negative thereof, or other
variations thereon, or comparable terminology, or by discussions of strategy. These statements reflect the Company’s reasonable
judgment with respect to future events and are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those in the forward-looking statements. Those risks and uncertainties include but are not limited to:

¢ domestic and international competition in the furniture industry, including price competition from lower-priced imports;

¢ general economic or business conditions, both domestically and internationally;

e the cyclical nature of the furniture industry;

e achieving and managing growth and change, and the risks associated with acquisitions, restructurings, strategic alliances and
international operations;

e risks associated with manufacturing operations, such as fluctuations in the price of key raw materials, including lumber, and
environmental matters;

e supply and transportation disruptions or delays affecting imported products;

e adverse political acts or developments in, or affecting, the international markets from which the Company imports products,
including duties or tariffs imposed on products imported by the Company;

e changes in domestic and international monetary policies and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates affecting the
price of the Company’s imported products;

e risks associated with distribution through retailers, such as non-binding dealership arrangements; and

e capital requirements and costs.




ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Set forth below is information with respect to the Company’s principal properties. The Company believes that all these properties are
well maintained and in good condition. The Company believes its manufacturing facilities are being efficiently utilized. The
Company estimates that its wood and upholstery manufacturing facilities are currently being operated at approximately 91% of
capacity, on a one-shift basis. All Company production facilities are equipped with automatic sprinkler systems, except for the
Woodleaf, N.C. facility. All facilities maintain modern fire and spark detection systems, which the Company believes are adequate.
The Company has leased certain warehouse facilities for its distribution and imports operation on a short-term basis. The Company is
developing plans to further improve its warehousing and distribution capabilities and expects that it will be able to renew or extend
these leases or find alternative facilities to meet its warehousing and distribution needs at a reasonable cost. The Company also
utilizes a 210,000 square foot warehouse and distribution center located in China that is owned and operated by third parties. All
facilities set forth below are active and operational.

Location Primary Use Approximate Size in Square Feet = Owned or Leased
Martinsville, Va. Corporate Headquarters 32,000 Owned
Martinsville, Va. Manufacturing and Distribution 760,000 Owned
Martinsville, Va. Distribution and Imports 580,000 Owned
Martinsville, Va. Distribution and Imports 125,000 Leased (1)
Martinsville, Va. Distribution and Imports 150,000 Leased (2)
Martinsville, Va. Distribution 189,000 Owned
Martinsville, Va. Plywood Production 146,000 Owned
Roanoke, Va. Manufacturing 265,000 Owned
Pleasant Garden, N.C. Manufacturing 300,000 Owned
High Point, N.C. Showroom 60,000 Leased (3)
Cherryville, N.C. Offices and Manufacturing 144,000 Owned (4)
Cherryville, N.C. Manufacturing 53,000 Owned (4)
Cherryville, N.C. Distribution and Imports 66,000 Leased (4) (5)
Hickory, N.C. Manufacturing 91,000 Owned (4)
Woodleaf, N.C. Manufacturing 34,000 Leased (4) (2)
High Point, N.C. Showroom 14,000 Owned (4)
High Point, N.C. Showroom 33,000 Owned (4)

(1) Lease subject to 90-day termination notice

(2) Lease expires December 31, 2005

(3) Lease expires October 31, 2007

(4) Comprise the principal properties of Bradington-Young

(5) Lease expires June 30, 2005 (contains an option to purchase)

ITEM3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.



EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF
HOOKER FURNITURE CORPORATION

The Company’s executive officers and their ages as of February 14, 2005 and the year each joined the Company are as follows:

Name Age Position Year Joined Company
Paul B. Toms, Jr. 50 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 1983
Douglas C. Williams 57 President and Chief Operating Officer 1971
E. Larry Ryder 57 Executive Vice President-Finance and Administration, 1977
Assistant Secretary and Assistant Treasurer
Michael P. Spece 52 Executive Vice President-Merchandising and Design 1997
Raymond T. Harm 55 Senior Vice President-Sales 1999
Henry P. Long, Jr. 53 Senior Vice President-Merchandising and Design 1983
C. Scott Young 47 Chief Executive Officer and President of 2003

Bradington-Young LLC

Paul B. Toms, Jr. has been Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since December 2000. Mr. Toms was President and Chief
Operating Officer from December 1999 to December 2000, Executive Vice President - Marketing from 1994 to December 1999,
Senior Vice President - Sales & Marketing from 1993 to 1994, and Vice President - Sales from 1987 to 1993. Mr. Toms joined the
Company in 1983 and has been a Director since 1993.

Douglas C. Williams has been President and Chief Operating Officer since December 2000. Mr. Williams was Executive Vice
President - Manufacturing from December 1999 to December 2000, Senior Vice President - Manufacturing from 1987 to 1999, and
Vice President - Manufacturing from 1986 to 1987. Prior to 1986, Mr. Williams held various positions in manufacturing
management. Mr. Williams joined the Company in 1971 and has been a Director since 1987.

E. Larry Ryder has been Executive Vice President - Finance and Administration since December 2000, Assistant Treasurer since
1998, and Assistant Secretary since 1990. Mr. Ryder was Senior Vice President - Finance and Administration from December 1987 to
December 2000, Treasurer from 1989 to 1998, and Vice President - Finance and Administration from 1983 to 1987. Prior to 1983, Mr.
Ryder served in various financial management positions. Mr. Ryder joined the Company in 1977 and was a Director from 1987 until
2003.

Michael P. Spece has been Executive Vice President - Merchandising and Design since September 2004. Mr. Spece was Senior Vice
President - Import Division from December 2001 to September 2004. Mr. Spece was Vice President - Import Division from the time
he joined the Company in 1997 until December 2001.

Raymond T. Harm has been Senior Vice President - Sales since joining the Company in 1999. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Harm served as Vice President - Sales for The Barcalounger Company, a manufacturer of upholstered motion furniture from 1992 to
1999.

Henry P. Long, Jr. has been Senior Vice President - Merchandising and Design since 1994. Mr. Long was Vice President - Sales
from 1987 to 1994. Prior to 1987, Mr. Long served in various merchandising and product development management positions. Mr.
Long joined the Company in 1983 and was a Director from 1993 until 2003.

C. Scott Young has been the Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Bradington-Young
LLC, since January 2003. Mr. Young joined the Company in connection with the Company’s acquisition of substantially all of the
assets of the predecessor of that subsidiary. Mr. Young served as the Chief Executive Officer and President of the predecessor of
Bradington-Young from June 1995 to January 2003.
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Hooker Furniture Corporation
Part 11

ITEMS. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER

The Company’s stock is traded on the NASDAQ SmallCap Market under the symbol “HOFT”. The table below sets forth the high
and low sales prices per share for the Company’s common stock and the dividend per share paid by the Company with respect to its
common stock for the periods indicated.

2004 2003
Sales Price per share Dividend Sales Price per share Dividend
High Low per share High Low per share
First Quarter........c.ococviovioveneeiee e $25.99 $19.09 $0.060 $10.69 $7.75 $0.050
Second Quarter ..........c..ccoeeeirineenn. 24.75 20.94 0.060 15.96 10.56 0.055
Third Quarter ..........cccoceceeverveniieneen . 28.15 18.99 0.060 15.52 11.86 0.055
Fourth Quarter .........c..ccoeccevevienenn, 28.50 21.65 0.060 21.27 14.00 0.055

As of January 15, 2005, the Company had 2,689 beneficial shareholders and 925 current and former employees participating in the
Company’s ESOP who were eligible to vote shares of common stock. The Company pays dividends on its common stock on or about
the last day of February, May, August and November, when declared by the Board of Directors, to shareholders of record
approximately two weeks earlier.

Although the Company presently intends to declare cash dividends at historical levels on a quarterly basis for the foreseeable future,
the determination as to the payment and the amount of any future dividends will be made by the Board of Directors from time to time
and will depend on the Company’s then-current financial condition, capital requirements, results of operations and any other factors
then deemed relevant by the Board of Directors. The Company has increased its dividend paid per share every year since 1992.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer or Affiliated Purchasers

In June 2001, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had authorized the repurchase of up to $3.0 million of the
Company’s common stock and announced an increase in that authorization of $2.2 million in October 2001, for an aggregate
authorization of $5.2 million. There is no expiration date for this authorization. Repurchases may be made from time to time in the
open market, or in privately negotiated transactions, at prevailing market prices that the Company deems appropriate. No shares of
common stock were repurchased by or on behalf of the Company or any “affiliated purchaser” (as defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) during fiscal 2004. Through November 30, 2004, the Company had repurchased
approximately 584,000 shares at a total cost of $2.5 million or an average of $4.29 per share. Based on the $23.35 closing price of the
common stock on November 30, 2004, the remaining $2.7 million of the authorization would allow the Company to repurchase
approximately 114,000 shares, or 0.8%, of the 14.5 million shares outstanding, or 1.1% of the Company’s outstanding shares
excluding the 4.0 million shares held by the ESOP.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data for each of the last five years ended November 30, 2004, has been derived from the Company’s
audited, consolidated financial statements. The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the related Notes, and Management’s Discussion and Analysis included elsewhere in this report.

For The Years Ended November 30,
2004 2003(D 2002 2001 2000
(In thousands, except per share data)

Income Statement Data:

Net SAlES...oiovieiiiirieiee e e $345,944 $309,005 $248,346 $221,289  $251,051
CoSt 0F SALES ..evrveineicicicieee e e, 250,467 226,880 179,558 170,008 187,727
GTOSS PIOfIt c.veeviiieieiirire et e 95,477 82,125 68,788 51,281 63,324
Selling and administrative expenses ................. 62,707 54,903 42,469 39,323 40,377
Restructuring charges (2).......cccocvvvnevccnenns 1,604 1,470 881

Operating iNCOME.......o.ccovvrirerrrrerrrine e ceeeeieairens 31,166 25,752 26,319 11,077 22,947
Other income (EXPense), NEL ......ccccvvrvrererrerene 627 286 560 1,213 792
INterest EXPenSe...cocevverevrreiierencrenine ceeeerrenennaes 1,869 2,638 2,094 2,140 830
Income before income taxes ............ccoceeevvvneennn 29,924 23,400 24,785 10,150 22,909
INCOME LAXES ..ververeieriiiiereereesie e eerecnrae e 11,720 8,690 9,394 3,640 7,995
NEt INCOME....oveeiieeiiiciiiiiie s e cnannas 18,204 14,710 15,391 6,510 14,914
Per Share Data:

Basic and diluted earnings per share (2) ........... $ 1.56 $ 1.28 $ 1.36 § 0.56 $ 1.03
Cash dividends per share ............ccccocvvvvevernren . 0.24 0.22 0.19 0.18 0.17
Net book value per share (3) ..o 11.60 10.02 8.87 7.72 7.34
Weighted average shares outstanding ............... 11,669 11,474 11,285 11,619 14,515
Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents ..........c..c.ccoeeveenn.n. $ 9,230 $ 14,859 $ 2,316 $ 7,926 $ 1,243
Trade accounts receivable........ccocoeeeeeeivnnnn. . 40,960 37,601 33,771 29,430 31,019
INVENLOTIES .vevveveieeieiceiiarrere e ceve e ranens 69,735 42,442 54,959 33,522 42,785
Assets held forsale (4)......c.cocovvvivivivcvecinncienn, 5,376

Working capital........ccooeviiiviiiiiiiiie e, 97,139 74,814 71,376 59,624 60,669
Total ASSETS...oueiireerieeicireree s e 188,918 167,099 149,881 130,695 133,531
Long-term debt (including current maturities).. 23,166 30,837 24,703 26,911 29,500
Common stock held by ESOP (5)..cc.coecvennns 9,397 10,412
Shareholders’ equity (5)..ccooverveceeinrcncneii e 136,585 116,264 101,044 77,741 75,559
(1) In 2003, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Cherryville, N.C. based leather seating specialist Bradington-Young LLC.

@
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Shipments of upholstered furniture products accounted for $57.5 million in 2004 and $44.2 million during the eleven month period
following its acquisition in January 2003.

In 2004, the Company recorded an after tax charge of $994,000 ($1.6 million pretax), or $0.09 per share principally related to the closing of
its Maiden, N.C. facility; in 2003, the Company recorded an after tax charge of $911,000 ($1.5 miilion pretax), or $0.08 per share related to
the closing of its Kernersville, N.C. facility; and in 2001, the Company reduced its workforce at the Martinsville, VA facility and recorded
an after tax charge of $546,000 ($881,000 pretax) and a special after tax expense of $199,000 ($321,000 pretax) related to certain benefits
distributed under its ESOP. These combined after tax charges of $745,000 ($1.2 million pretax) reduced earnings per share by $0.06 in
2001.

Net book value per share is derived by dividing (a) the sum of (i) “shareholders’ equity” and (it) “common stock held by ESOP” (for
periods prior to 2002) by (b) the number of common shares issued and outstanding, excluding unearned ESOP shares, all determined as of
November 30 of each year.

In connection with the October 2004 closing of its Maiden, N.C. plant, the Company reclassified substantially all of related property, plant
and equipment to “assets held for sale”. The carrying value of these assets approximated fair value less anticipated selling expenses. The
sale of these assets was completed in the first quarter of 2005.

In 2002, Hooker Furniture common stock began trading on the NASDAQ SmallCap Market. As a result, the Company is no longer
obligated to repurchase shares from participants in the Company’s ESOP. Consequently, shares previously reflected in the Company’s
balance sheets as “common stock held by ESOP” have been reclassified to “shareholders’ equity”.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Selected Financial Data and the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the related Notes, contained eisewhere in this Annual Report.

Overview

Hooker Furniture is the fourteenth largest source for furniture in the United States based on 2003 domestic furniture shipments,
according to Furniture/Today, a trade publication. The Company is an 80-year old manufacturer and importer of home theater, wall
and entertainment systems, home office, dining, bedroom, youth bedroom, bathroom, accents, occasional and upholstered leather
furniture. Extensive style and finish selections within each of the product categories make the Company a comprehensive resource for
retailers primarily targeting the upper-medium price range, and in the case of the Bradington-Young line of upholstered leather
furniture, the upper-medium and upper price ranges. The Company’s principal customers are retailers of residential home furnishings
who are broadly dispersed throughout North America. Dealers include independent furniture stores, department stores, specialty
retailers, catalog merchants and national and regional furniture chains. The Company has approximately 1,700 employees and
owns or leases seven manufacturing facilities, a supply plant, five warehouse and distribution facilities and an administrative office
located in Virginia and North Carolina, as well as three dealer showrooms in High Point, N.C. The Company operates facilities
in Cherryville, Hickory, High Point, Pleasant Garden and Woodleaf, N.C. and Martinsville and Roanoke, Va. During the 2004 third
quarter the Company also began utilizing a dedicated warehouse and distribution center in China which is owned by the Company’s
largest supplier of imported products.

Over the three-year period ended November 30, 2004, the Company has operated in a sluggish economy impacted by low to moderate
levels of consumer confidence. Yet 2004 marked the third straight year of double-digit annual net sales gains and the Company ended
its 80th year by reporting twelve consecutive quarters of increased net sales compared to the year-earlier periods. Beginning in 2002,
the Company’s results of operations have been affected in opposing ways by lower-priced imported furniture. First, the Company’s
domestic wood furniture manufacturing operations have suffered from lower demand and significant declines in volume for its
bedroom, home office and home entertainment products, based on competition from lower-priced imports. These declines led to the
closing of its Maiden, N.C. facility in 2004 and its Kernersville, N.C. facility in 2003, and reduced work schedules at its wood
furniture manufacturing facilities over most of the period since 2001. Second, the Company’s imported wood and metal furniture
operations have experienced significant growth over this three-year period, with increased demand for its home theater wall units,
entertainment centers, home office, casual dining, bedroom, accent, occasional, and licensed lines such as PGA TOUR® Home
furniture.

Increased demand for imported wood and metal furniture products, coupled with a significant increase in purchases and distribution of
imported inventory, beginning in the second half of 2002, have fueled a significant growth in revenue that has outpaced the declines in
demand for domestically produced wood furniture during the same time period. The Company has responded to increased demand for
imported products by:

e increasing inventories to facilitate expedited delivery,
o leasing additional warehousing and distribution capacity in the United States,

e opening a distribution center in China (the facility is owned by the Company’s largest supplier of imported products and
operated by that supplier and a third party), and

¢ increasing the selling and administrative effort to support the higher volumes.

The Company’s Container Direct Program has also fueled the dramatic growth of its import business. The Container Direct Program
allows retailers to use an internet ordering system to purchase full containers of a mixed variety of imported products at attractive
pricing with expedited delivery.

Bradington-Young, acquired in January 2003, is a fast-growing brand with a broad offering of upscale residential leather upholstered
furniture and some fabric upholstered furniture. Major product categories include leather reclining and motion chairs and sofas,
executive desk chairs, club chairs and stationary upholstered furniture. Under the Bradington-Young brand, Hooker offers
upholstered furniture targeted at the upper-medium and upper price ranges. The Company believes that these upholstered products
complement its existing wood and metal furniture product lines, and are beginning to achieve the sales levels that were envisioned
when the Company acquired that line.
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A key distribution development began in 2003, when the Company merged its Hooker and Bradington-Young sales forces, providing
a more than four-fold increase in the number of professional sales representatives selling Bradington-Young products. This
integration fueled significant Bradington-Young sales volume growth and the addition of over 800 new retail accounts carrying the
upholstery line since the Company acquired that business in 2003. Shipments of Bradington-Young upholstered furniture products
accounted for $57.5 million in net sales for 2004, compared to $44.2 million for the 2003 eleven -month period after the subsidiary was
acquired. The Company believes that its upholstery business will continue to experience strong growth in the future and is well-
positioned to leverage additional opportunities for synergy in merchandising and marketing. For example, in 2004, by adding
imported upholstered products, Bradington-Young expanded its product line in both style and price, offering more competitive,
medium-priced upholstered furniture marketed through the Company’s new Seven Seas Seating line.

The Company faces several major opportunities and challenges over the coming year:

e Although demand for domestically produced wood furniture products has declined in favor of lower-priced imports, the
Company will continue to spark sales growth in domestic product categories through fresh introductions of new products,
styles and finishes; through combining domestically produced and imported products in stylish, functional new multi-product
category collections and new whole home collections; and through aggressive marketing and value pricing.

e The Company is supporting continued growth of domestically produced upholstered furniture through new product offerings.
The Company believes that Bradington-Young is poised for continued strong growth and expects to leverage expanded lines
and distribution into higher net sales of upholstered products during 2005.

e The Company expects to see continued growth in its imported product lines and is developing plans to further improve its
cooperative design process, product offerings, logistics, quality control, warehousing and distribution capabilities with the
objectives of reducing costs and improving product deliveries to retailers, particularly those located on the West Coast.

e The Company expects to reduce its selling and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the percentage relationship to net sales of certain items included in the consolidated statements of
income:

For the Years Ended November 30,

2004 2003 2002

INEE SIS ..eivvieiieceeee et et e e et e e enea s 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
CoSt OF SAIES ..t e e _724 734 723
GIOSS PIOFIt ..ovviieeiiciii it ettt v 27.6 26.6 27.7
Selling and administrative eXpenses........ovevvrrervernes verernenes 18.1 17.8 17.1
Restructuring and asset impairment charges .........cccccocevvvnnran, _05 _0.5 o
OPerating INCOMIE ....veuvovieuiiereeierieraess eereesresasssesseeereseeareens oa 9.0 8.3 10.6
OheT INCOME, ML ...viiveieeeiiiiiit e e ettt e e e _0.2 _01 _02
Income before interest and inCOME taXes .......ccceeevvvvvieeirenans 9.2 84 10.8
INEEIESt EXPEIISE c.v.vvivieeviiririitreereete creeeree e st etbeebeesseeeeeres creerrens _0.6 _ 0.8 _0.8
Income before INCOME tAXES........cvveeevvviicrieecee e, 8.6 7.6 10.0
INCOME tAXES ..oioiviiiiiiiee e e e e _33 28 _38

NETINCOME ...vevieieicieriie it iree vt cb st rebeasarenis _53% _4.8% _62%

2004 Compared to 2003

Hooker Furniture Corporation established record net sales and income for 2004. Net sales of $345.9 million for the year ended
November 30, 2004, increased 12.0% from $309.0 million in 2003. Net income for 2004 of $18.2 million or $1.56 per share,
increased 23.8% compared to 2003 net income of $14.7 million or $1.28 per share.

Management achieved record net sales and profitability performance for the year despite significant additional expenses, such as
restructuring costs associated with the October 2004 closing of the Maiden, N.C. plant and expenses incurred to comply with
corporate governance mandates brought about by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Improvement in net sales, net income and profitability as a percentage of net sales in 2004 was principally driven by higher unit
volume and improved gross profit margin.
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Increases in net sales for 2004 can be attributed to unit volume growth in Hooker’s imported furniture and growth in the Bradington-
Young line of upholstered furniture, partially offset by decreased shipments of domestically produced wood furniture. During 2004,
average selling prices increased for imported wood and metal furniture, and increased slightly for domestic wood furniture, but
declined for upholstered furniture, compared to 2003. Overall, average selling prices increased slightly in 2004 compared to 2003.
Annual 2004 net sales by product category were as follows:

e Imported wood and metal furniture net sales, including shipments under the Company’s Container Direct Program, grew to
$185.4 million, an increase of 24.7% compared to $148.7 million in 2003. This category increased to 53.6% of total net sales
in 2004 from 48.1% in the prior year.

e  Domestic wood furniture net sales dropped to $103.0 million, a decline of 11.3% compared to $116.1 million in 2003, This
category decreased to 29.8% of total net sales in 2004 compared to 37.6% in 2003.

¢ Upholstered furniture net sales grew to $57.5 million, compared to $44.2 million during the eleven months following
Bradington-Young’s acquisition by the Company at the beginning of January 2003. Upholstery net sales increased to 16.6%
of total net sales in 2004 from 14.3% in 2003.

The double-digit net sales growth for Hooker’s Bradington-Young operations is principally the result of an expanded sales
organization and a broader product line. While the Company has provided a four-fold increase in the number of professional sales
representatives selling this line, net sales growth has exceeded the growth rate in related selling and distribution expenses.
Consequently, these expenses have declined as a percentage of upholstered furniture net sales.

Gross profit margin increased to 27.6% of net sales in 2004 compared to 26.6% in 2003. The increased proportion of imported
furniture shipments helped to improve gross profit margin in 2004, since these products typically carry higher gross profit margins
than domestically manufactured products (however, imported furniture typically requires a higher level of sourcing, warechousing and
distribution costs, which are reflected in selling and administrative expenses, compared to domestically produced furniture).

The gross profit margin on imported furniture increased during 2004 compared to 2003, based on the mix of products sold and
reduced assembly costs. The improvement was partially offset by higher levels of shipments under the Company’s Container Direct
Program. Products shipped under the Container Direct Program are offered for sale with higher volume discounts than shipments of
imported products from domestic warehouses. Gross profit margin on domestically produced wood furniture improved slightly during
2004, helped by lower levels of promotional discounting and lower domestic wood furniture production costs as a percentage of net
sales. The production cost margin improved based on steps taken to more closely align production capacity with demand.
Bradington-Young’s 2004 gross profit margin approximated the 2003 gross profit margin. Improved raw material utilization and
lower overhead costs, resulting from higher unit volume, were offset by higher labor and benefits costs (principally non-cash ESOP
cost).

Selling and administrative expenses increased by $7.8 million, or 14.2%, to $62.7 million in 2004 from $54.9 million in 2003. The
increase is principally due to the following:

® Higher professional services and personnel expenses incurred to comply with accounting, internal control and corporate
governance mandates brought about by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and new SEC and NASDAQ rules and regulations.
The Company expects these compliance costs to decline during 2005.

e Higher selling, warehousing and distribution costs supporting higher import net sales, including the costs incurred to bring
the new affiliated Asian warehouse and distribution center and internet-based product ordering system on line during the
second half of 2004.

® Increased sales and marketing expenses supporting higher upholstery net sales, including the start up and operating costs
incurred for the Seven Seas Seating warehouse during the second half of 2004. In addition, selling and administrative
expenses for 2003 include only eleven months of operating expenses for Bradington-Young following its acquisition by the
Company at the beginning of January 2003 compared to twelve months of operating expenses during 2004.

As a percentage of net sales, selling and administrative expenses increased to 18.1% in 2004 from 17.8% in 2003, principally due to
the higher corporate governance compliance costs mentioned previously. However, warehousing, distribution, selling and marketing
expenses declined as a percentage of net sales through the effect of higher net sales.

The non-cash cost of the Company’s ESOP for 2004 increased $874,000 to $3.8 million compared to $2.9 million in 2003. The
Company records non-cash ESOP cost for the number of shares that it commits to release to eligible employees at the average market
price of the Company’s common stock during each respective period based on the amount of the annual principal and interest
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payments made on the ESOP Loan. As allowed under the terms of the ESOP Loan, the Company reduced the amount of 2004
contributions to the ESOP. Consequently, the ESOP committed to release approximately 161,200 shares at an average market price of
$23.48 during 2004 compared to approximately 212,200 shares at an average market price of $13.83 during 2003. The ESOP shares
have a cost basis of $6.25 per share. The cost of the plan is allocated to cost of goods sold and selling and administrative expenses
based on employee compensation.

Profitability for both 2004 and 2003 was impacted by restructuring charges related to plant closings. In 2004, the Company recorded a
$1.6 million pretax ($1.0 million after tax or $0.09 per share) restructuring and related asset impairment charge principally related to
the October 2004 closing of the Company’s Maiden, N.C. wood furniture manufacturing facility. In 2003, the Company recorded a
$1.5 million pretax (3911,000 after tax or $0.08 per share) restructuring and related asset impairment charge related to the August
2003 closing of the Company’s Kernersville, N.C. wood furniture plant. Competitive pressures from lower priced imports, which
have caused continuing declines in shipments of domestically produced wood furniture, led to decisions to close the Maiden and
Kemersville, N.C. facilities. The pretax restructuring charges reduced operating income in 2004 and 2003 by 0.5% of net sales.

The 2004 pretax restructuring and asset impairment charge consisted of approximately $872,000 in severance and related benefits paid
to approximately 280 hourly and salaried employees terminated at the Maiden, N.C. facility and approximately $637,000 in related
asset impairment and other costs (principally factory disassembly costs). Substantially all of the severance benefits were paid during
the 2004 fourth quarter. The 2004 charge also included an additional $95,000 for health benefits and other costs related to the 2003
closing of the Company’s Kernersville, N.C. facility. The 2003 pretax restructuring and asset impairment charges consisted of $1.1
million in severance and related benefits paid to approximately 290 hourly and salaried employees terminated at the Kernersville, N.C.
facility and $366,000 in related asset impairment costs.

The Maiden, N.C. real property, and substantially all of the machinery and equipment, which had an aggregate carrying value of $5.4
million as of November 30, 2004, have been reclassified to “assets held for sale” included in “current assets” on the consolidated
balance sheet. The carrying value of these assets reflects fair value less anticipated selling expenses. Substantially all of the Maiden,
N.C. property and equipment was sold for an aggregate consideration of $5.2 million in cash (after selling expenses) in the first
quarter of 2005. The Company expects that the remaining real property, which has a carrying value of $229,000, will be sold within
the next twelve months. The Company has transferred the production of patterns and products manufactured at the Maiden plant to
other Company facilities.

As a result of the above, operating income as a percentage of net sales increased to 9.0% in 2004, compared to 8.3% for 2003.

Other income, net increased by $341,000 to $627,000 in 2004 from $286,000 in 2003. The increase reflects higher levels of
miscellaneous cash receipts and interest income. Also in 2003, the Company recorded a loss of $139,000 on the termination of an
interest rate swap agreement.

Interest expense decreased $769,000 to $1.9 million during 2004 from $2.6 million in 2003. The decrease is principally due to a $15.0
million debt prepayment made by the Company in the fourth quarter of 2003 and other scheduled debt repayments made during 2004,

The Company’s effective tax rate increased to 39.2% in 2004 compared to 37.1% in 2003, principally as a result of higher non-cash
ESOP cost and higher state income taxes. The Company records non-cash ESOP cost based on the average market value of the
Company’s common stock during the year, but may deduct only the cost basis of the shares for income tax purposes.

Net income for 2004 increased to $18.2 million, or $1.56 per share, compared to $14.7 million, or $1.28 per share, in 2003.

2003 Compared te 2002

Net sales in 2003 increased $60.7 million, or 24.4%, to $309.0 million, from $248.3 million in 2002. Net sales increases in 2003 can
be attributed to growth resulting from the Company’s January 2003 acquisition of Bradington-Young and growth in Hooker Furniture’s
wood furniture operations. Net sales for the Company’s wood furniture operations increased $16.5 million, or 6.6%, to $264.8 million
for 2003, compared with $248.3 million in 2002.

Shipments of imported products, including shipments under the Company’s Container Direct Program, increased $44.8 million, or
43.0%, to $148.7 million, compared with $103.9 million in 2002. Upholstery shipments accounted for $44.2 million in net sales for the
eleven month period after the operation was acquired. Shipments of the Company’s domestically produced wood furniture declined
$28.3 million, or 19.6%, to $116.1 million from $144.4 million in 2002. Average selling prices for domestically produced wood
furniture decreased during 2003 while the average selling prices for imported wood furniture products increased. Overall wood
furniture average selling prices declined during 2003, primarily due to the larger proportion of lower-priced imported products shipped.

For 2003, the Company’s gross profit margin declined to 26.6%, from 27.7% in 2002. The decline in 2003 is principally attributed to
lower margins on imported shipments resulting from higher inbound freight and other transit related costs. Margins also declined on
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domestically produced wood furniture. During 2003, the Company’s domestic wood furniture manufacturing operations continued to
experience reductions in raw material costs as a percentage of net sales compared to 2002. However, these improvements were more
than offset by increased labor and overhead costs as a percentage of net sales, resulting from inefficiencies created by reduced work
schedules during 2003 and heavier sales discounting. As a percentage of net sales, imported products generally reflect higher gross
profit margins than domestically produced wood furniture. However, imported products also carry a higher component of selling and
administrative expenses than domestically produced wood furniture, primarily expenses related to product sourcing, warehousing and
distribution.

During 2003, the gross profit margin for upholstered products manufactured by Bradington-Young was comparable to the gross profit
margin the Company achieved on its domestically produced wood furniture products, ranging typically from 20-25% of net sales.

The closing of the Kernersville facility and reductions in inventory levels, coupled with strong incoming orders for domestically
produced wood furniture during the 2003 fourth quarter, enabled the Company to better align domestic wood furniture capacity with
current and anticipated demand.

Selling and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales for 2003 increased to 17.8%, compared to 17.1% in 2002. Selling and
administrative expenses rose as a percentage of net sales in 2003 principally due to increased selling, warehousing and distribution
costs to support higher volumes of imported products. As a result of increased demand for imported preducts, the Compan y responded
by increasing both its warehousing and distribution capacity and its selling and administrative efforts to support the higher volumes.
The dollar amounts of selling and administrative expenses increased $12.4 million during 2003, mainly due to the addition of selling
and administrative expenses for Bradington-Young and the increased import-related costs mentioned previously.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company began leasing, equipping and staffing an aggregate of 287,000 square feet of
additional warehousing and distribution space, all of which was fully operational during 2003. During the first quarter of 2004, the
Company relocated a portion of this additional warehousing capacity to a new, slightly smaller facility. The Company developed plans
to further improve its warehousing and distribution capabilities at a reasonable cost.

Profitability for 2003 was negatively impacted by $1.5 million pretax ($911,000 after tax, or $0.08 per share) in restructuring and asset
impairment charges related to the August 2003 closing of the Company’s Kernersville, N.C. manufacturing facility. The restructuring
and asset impairment charge consisted of $1.1 million in severance and related benefits paid to 290 terminated hourly and salaried
employees and $366,000 in related asset impairment costs. Substantially all of the severance and related benefits were paid to
terminated employees in the 2003 third quarter. This charge (before taxes) reduced operating income by 0.5% of net sales for 2003.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company sold the Kernersville plant and some of its equipment for an aggregate consideration
of $1.1 million ($164,000 in cash and a $900,000 note receivable). The property had an aggregate carrying value of $827,000. The
Company moved the production of patterns and products manufactured at the Kernersville plant to other Company facilities.

In the 2003 fourth quarter, the Company: (i) reduced its accrual for restructuring and asset impairment charges related to the closing of
the Kernersville facility, principally as a result of lower than anticipated severance costs, and (ii) recorded a gain on the sale of the
facility. Both of these adjustments to the accrual were offset by higher than anticipated cash payments incurred to prepare the
Kernersville facility for sale.

As a result of the items mentioned previously, operating income declined $567,000, to $25.8 million, or 8.3% of net sales, in 2003,
compared to $26.3 million, or 10.6% of net sales, in 2002.

Other income, net decreased to $286,000 in 2003 from $560,000 in 2002. The decline resulted primarily from declines in interest
income, due principally to lower levels of invested cash during 2003, and a loss of $139,000 on the termination of an interest rate
swap agreement in connection with the prepayment of $15.0 million on one of the Company’s term loans (see Notes 7 and 8 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements beginning at page F-1 of this report).

Interest expense increased $544,000, to $2,638,000 in 2003, from $2,094,000 in 2002. The increase in interest expense during the
2003 period is due to higher debt levels, principally resulting from debt incurred in the acquisition of Bradington-Young, partially
offset by lower average interest rates on the Company’s borrowings.

The Company’s effective tax rate declined to 37.1% in 2003 from 37.9% in 2002, principally as a result of lower state income taxes.

Net income for 2003 decreased $681,000 to $14.7 million, or $1.28 per share, from $15.4 million, or $1.36 per share, in 2002, The
restructuring charge discussed above reduced net income by $911,000 after tax ($1.5 million pretax) or $0.08 per share in 2003.
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Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Balance Sheet and Working Capital

Assets totaled $188.9 million as of November 30, 2004, increasing $21.8 million from $167.1 million at November 30, 2003. The
increase reflects the $27.3 million investment of Company resources in increasing furniture inventory levels. Several steps taken by
the Company contributed to the increase in inventories:

e rectifying sub-optimal inventory levels at the end of 2003,

e stocking the new affiliated Asian warehouse in 2004 for the Company’s Container Direct Program, and

e adding a North Carolina warehouse for the Seven Seas Seating line in 2004.

Shareholders’ equity at November 30, 2004 increased $20.3 million to $136.6 million compared to $116.3 million at November 30,
2003. Working capital increased by $22.3 million to $97.1 million as of November 30, 2004, from $74.8 million at the end of 2003,
reflecting the net effect of a $30.0 million increase in current assets (principally the increase in inventories) partially offset by a $7.7
million increase in current liabilities (principally accounts payable resulting from higher inventory purchase levels). The Company’s
long-term debt, including current maturities, decreased to $23.2 million at November 30, 2004, compared to $30.8 million at
November 30, 2003 as a result of scheduled debt payments.

Cash Flows — Operating, Investing and Financing Activities

During 2004, cash generated from operations ($7.4 million), a decrease in cash and cash equivalents ($5.6 million), proceeds from
borrowing ($2.0 million), the collection of a note receivable ($900,000 issued in connection with the November 2003 sale of the
Kernersville, N.C. manufacturing facility) and proceeds from the sale of property ($181,000) funded the repayment of long-term debt
($9.7 million), capital expenditures ($3.7 million) and dividend payments ($2.8 million).

During 2003, proceeds from borrowings ($77.3 million), cash generated from operations ($42.1 million), and proceeds from the sale
of property ($92,000) provided cash for the acquisition of Bradington-Young ($22.1 million, net of cash acquired), the refinancing and
repayment of long-term debt ($75.3 million, including the repayment of $4.1 million of debt assumed in the Bradington-Young
acquisition), an increase in available cash and cash equivalents ($12.5 million), capital expenditures ($4.0 million), payments to
terminate interest rate swap agreements ($3.2 million) and dividend payments ($2.5 million).

During 2002, cash generated from operations ($5.7 million), a decrease in available cash and cash equivalents ($5.6 million) and
proceeds from borrowings ($3.0 million) funded capital expenditures ($6.1 million), repayments of long-term debt ($5.2 million),
dividend payments ($1.9 million), and the purchase and retirement of common stock ($1.2 million).

Cash generated from operations in 2004 of $7.4 million decreased $34.7 million from $42.1 million in 2003. The decrease was due to
$64.9 million in higher payments to suppliers and employees, and $2.5 million in higher income tax payments, partially offset by
$31.8 million in higher payments received from customers and $1.0 million in lower interest payments. Payments to suppliers and
employees increased principally to fund increased purchases and inventory levels of imported furniture, higher production of
upholstered furniture (including an additional month of Bradington-Young upholstery production and operating costs compared to the
prior year) and higher selling and administrative expenses, partially offset by reduced cash requirements to support lower domestic
wood furniture production levels, and increased levels of trade payables and accrued liabilities. During the 2004 third quarter, the
Company began utilizing a warehouse located in China (owned and operated by third parties) targeted to drive growth in the
Company’s Container Direct Program. The Company began shipping from that warehouse in late August 2004. As of November 30,
2004, that warehouse contained $8.1 million of inventory. Cash received from customers increased $31.8 million as a result of higher
imported and upholstered furniture net sales (including an additional month of Bradington-Young upholstery shipments compared to
the prior year). Tax payments increased $2.5 million principally due to higher levels of taxable income and differences in the amount
of required payments due in each respective period. Interest payments decreased $1.0 million principally due to lower debt levels.

In 2003, cash generated from operations of $42.1 million increased $36.4 million from $5.7 million in 2002. The increase was due to
higher payments received from customers, partially offset by higher payments to suppliers and employees and higher income tax and
interest payments. Cash received from customers increased $66.8 million as a result of Bradington-Young net sales since January
2003 and higher wood furniture net sales. Payments to suppliers and employees increased $26.4 million, principally to fund the
production of upholstered products and the operating costs of Bradington-Young since January 2003, increased purchases of imported
wood furniture products, and higher selling and administrative expenses, partially offset by reduced cash requirements to support
lower domestic wood furniture production levels. Tax payments increased $3.5 million principally as a result of differences in the
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amount of required payments due in each respective period. Interest payments, net, increased $480,000 reflecting the higher average
debt level to fund the acquisition of Bradington-Young partially offset by the effect of lower average interest rates.

Investing activities consumed $2.6 million during 2004 compared to $26.0 million in 2003 and $6.1 million in 2002. The Company
purchased Bradington-Young in January 2003 for cash payments totaling $22.1 million (net of cash acquired). Purchases of plant,
equipment, and other assets to maintain and enhance the Company’s facilities and business operating systems amounted to $3.7
million in 2004, $4.0 million in 2003 and $6.1 million in 2002. As a result of lower demand for domestic wood furniture and the
transfer of certain production equipment from the Maiden and Kernersville, N.C. facilities to the Company’s other wood furniture
manufacturing facilities, the Company’s capital expenditure requirements declined from 2002 levels.

Financing activities utilized cash of $10.5 million in 2004, compared to $3.6 million in 2003 and $5.2 million in 2002. During 2004,
the Company borrowed $2.0 million under its revolving credit facility, repaid $9.7 million of long-term debt and paid cash dividends
of $2.8 million. In 2004, the Company made scheduled debt payments of $4.9 million for Term Loan B, $2.0 million for Term Loan
A and $1.8 million for the industrial revenue bonds. The Company also repaid $1.0 million on the revolving credit facility.

During 2003, the Company borrowed: a) $42.8 million under new term loan agreements ($18.3 million under Term Loan A and $24.5
million under Term Loan B) to complete the refinancing of its long-term debt in April 2003, b) $26.7 million to fund the purchase of
Bradington-Young and to repay debt assumed in the acquisition, and ¢) $7.8 million under its revolving credit line to fund other
operating, investing and financing cash flow activities. Also during 2003, the Company repaid a) $17.8 million under an existing term
loan and $25.0 million of the bank debt used to acquire Bradington-Young, primarily in connection with refinancing its long-term
debt, b) $10.0 million under its revolving credit line, ¢) $4.1 million of debt assumed in the Bradington-Young acquisition, d) $18.4
million under Term Loans A and B (including a prepayment of $15.0 million on Term Loan B in November 2003). The Company also
paid $3.2 million to terminate interest rate swap agreements and paid dividends of $2.5 million during 2003.

During 2002, the Company used cash in financing activities to repay $2.2 million net, of long-term debt, pay dividends of $1.9
million, repurchase approximately 120,900 shares of common stock from ESOP participants at a total cost of $1.1 million, or $8.98
per share, as required by the terms of the ESOP, and repurchase approximately 12,140 shares of common stock at a total cost of
$83,000, or $6.81 per share, under the common stock repurchase program authorized by the Board of Directors in 2001.

Swap Agreements

During 2003, the Company, in connection with the refinancing of its bank debt, terminated an interest rate swap agreement that in
effect provided a fixed interest rate of approximately 7.4% on an existing term loan and entered into a new interest rate swap
agreement. The new agreement is on substantially the same terms as the terminated agreement, except that it in effect provides for a
fixed interest rate of 4.1% through 2010 on Term Loan A. The Company’s $3.0 million payment to terminate the swap agreement is
being amortized as interest expense over the remaining repayment period for Term Loan A, resulting in an effective fixed interest rate
of approximately 7.4% on Term Loan A.

Also in 2003, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement that in effect provided a fixed interest rate of 4.0% through
2008 on Term Loan B. The Company is accounting for the new interest rate swap agreements for Term Loans A and B as cash flow
hedges.

In November 2003, the Company prepaid $15.0 million on Term Loan B. In connection with the prepayment on Term Loan B, the
Company terminated the related interest rate swap agreement. The Company incurred a loss of $204,000 in 2003 to terminate the
swap agreement of which $139,000 was charged against “other income, net” in the statements of income. The balance of the
termination payment is being amortized over the remaining repayment period for Term Loan B.

The aggregate fair market value of the Company’s swap agreements decreases when interest rates decline and increases when interest
rates rise. Interest rates declined during 2002, remained relatively constant during 2003, and increased during 2004. The decrease in
the aggregate fair market value of the effective portion of the agreements of $759,000 after tax ($1.2 million pretax) as of November
30, 2004, and $1.9 million after tax ($3.0 million pretax) as of November 30, 2003, is reflected under the caption “accumulated other
comprehensive loss” in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company also reduced interest expense by $45,000 in 2004 and
recognized additional interest expense of $44,000 in 2003, and $170,000 in 2002, for the ineffective portion of the swap agreements’
change in value. Approximately $549,000 of the aggregate pretax decrease in fair market value of the agreements is expected to be
reclassified into earnings during the next 12 months as a component of the interest expense that will accrue on the debt.
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Debt Covenant Compliance

The credit facility for the Company’s revolving credit line and Term Loans A and B contains, among other things, financial covenants
as to minimum tangible net worth, debt service coverage, the ratio of funded debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation,
amortization and maximum capital expenditures. The Company was in compliance with these covenants as of November 30, 2004.

Liquidity, Resources and Capital Expenditures

As of November 30, 2004, the Company had $12.6 million available under its revolving credit line to fund working capital needs, and
$17.7 million available under additional committed lines of credit, to support the issuance of letters of credit. There were borrowings
of $1.0 million outstanding under the revolving credit line on November 30, 2004. Based on the terms of the revolving credit line as
renewed in February 2005, any principal outstanding under the credit line will be due March 1, 2008. The Company believes it has
the financial resources (including available cash and cash equivalents, expected cash flow from operations, and lines of credit) needed
to meet business requirements for the foreseeable future, including capital expenditures, working capital, repurchases of common
stock under the Company’s stock repurchase program and dividends on the Company’s common stock. Cash flow from operations is
highly dependent on incoming order rates and the Company’s operating performance. The Company expects to spend $4.0 to $4.5
million in capital expenditures during 2005 to maintain and enhance its facilities and operating systems.

Dividends

In January 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors declared an increased quarterly cash dividend of $0.07 per share, payable on
February 28, 2005, to shareholders of record February 15, 2005.

Commitments and Contractual Obligations
As of November 30, 2004, the Company’s commitments and contractual obligations were as follows:

Payments Due by Period (In thousands)

Less than After 5
1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Years Total
Long-term debt ....ccoovveviiiiriiiiiiice e, $6,671 $6,940 $6,491 $3,064 $23,166
Operating 1€ases ........cocoverreenrnnrent e 1,511 1,608 49 3,168
Total contractual cash obligations................. $8.182 $8,548 $6,540 $3.064 $26,334

Outlook

Based on double-digit net sales growth of imported and upholstered furniture, the Company finished 2004 with strong momentum by
marking its 3 year of double-digit net sales growth, and its 12" consecutive quarter of increased net sales compared with prior year
quarters. Operating income increased 55.5% in the fourth quarter of 2004 versus the fourth quarter of 2003, as a result of increased
unit sales and improved gross margin versus the prior year period.

While Hooker is pleased with its 23.8% increase in net income for the year, the Company believes that there will be ample
opportunities to improve earnings in 2005 by continuing to grow the imported furniture and Bradington-Young upholstered furniture
lines. Management is optimistic in regard to 2005, and projects net sales increases of 4-7% for the 2005 first quarter over the same
2004 period.

The Company believes that the economic outlook is more positive than it has been since 2000 and anticipates that improving
consumer confidence should begin to release pent-up demand for furniture created by the growth in the housing industry over the last
several years.

The Company believes that imported and upholstered furniture can sustain momentum into 2005 and that the Company is in a good
position to capitalize on improving business because of its strong product line and improved inventory levels.

With the October closing of the Maiden, N.C. plant, the Company expects to operate its domestic wood furniture plants closer to
capacity, which should contribute to more efficient operations. The Company increased its domestic production capacity utilization
for wood and upholstered furniture to approximately 91% during January and February 2005. Increasing production at each of its
three remaining wood furniture plants should lower overhead costs as a percentage of volume, thereby improving gross margin for
domestic wood furniture. Based on current expectations regarding domestic wood furniture sales, management anticipates that the
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closing of the Maiden, N.C. plant will result in production cost savings of approximately $1.8 to $2.2 million annually beginning in
the first quarter of 2005.

Like most public companies, Hooker Furniture has allocated additional financial and manpower resources to the administrative task of
complying with the corporate governance mandates brought about by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The Company expects the cost
of compliance to decline during 2005. As a percent of sales, selling and administrative expenses declined slightly for the 2004 fourth
quarter compared to the prior year period through the effect of higher net sales. Reducing selling and administrative expenses as a
percentage of net sales will be a challenge for the Company while also addressing initiatives to continue growing the Company’s
businesses.

Environmental Matters

Hooker Furniture Corporation is committed to protecting the environment as evidenced by its products and its manufacturing
operations. The Company’s manufacturing sites generate hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, the treatment, storage, transportation
and disposal of which are subject to various local, state and national laws relating to protecting the environment. The Company is in
various stages of investigation, remediation or monitoring of alleged or acknowledged contamination at current or former
manufacturing sites for groundwater and soil contamination and visible air emissions, none of which the Company deems material to
its results of operations or financial position. The Company’s policy is to record environmental liabilities when losses are probable
and can be reasonably estimated. The costs associated with the Company’s environmental responsibilities, compliance with federal,
state and local laws regulating the discharge of materials into the environment, or otherwise relating to the protection of the
environment, have not had and, are not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations,
capital expenditures or competitive position.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Company’s significant accounting policies are described in “Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” to the
consolidated financial statements beginning at page F-1 in this report. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions in certain circumstances that
affect amounts reported in the accompanying financial statements and related notes. In preparing these financial statements,
management has made its best estimates and judgments of certain amounts included in the financial statements, giving due
consideration to materiality. The Company does not believe there is a great likelihood that materially different amounts would be
reported related to the accounting policies described below; however, application of these accounting policies involves the exercise of
judgment and the use of assumptions as to future uncertainties and as a result, actual results could differ from these estimates.

The Company evaluates the adequacy of its allowance for doubtful accounts at the end of each quarter. In performing this evaluation,
the Company analyzes the payment history of its significant past due accounts, subsequent cash collections on these accounts and
comparative accounts receivable aging statistics. Based on this information, along with consideration of the general strength of the
economy, the Company develops what it considers to be a reasonable estimate of the uncollectible amounts included in accounts
receivable. This estimate involves significant judgment by the management of the Company. Actual uncollectible amounts may
differ from the Company’s estimate.

The Company values its inventories at the lower of cost (using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method) or market. The Company
evaluates its inventory for excess or slow moving items based on recent and projected sales and order patterns. The Company
establishes an allowance for those items when the estimated market or net sales value is lower than their recorded cost. This estimate
involves significant judgment by management and actual values may differ from the Company’s estimate.

The Company’s domestic wood furniture manufacturing operations have suffered from lower demand and significant declines in
volume for its bedroom, home office and home entertainment products principally due to competition from lower-priced imported
furniture products. These declines led to the closing of the Company’s Maiden, N.C. facility in October 2004 and the closing of its
Kernersville, N.C. facility in August 2003. As a result of these plant closings, the Company recorded restructuring charges principally
consisting of severance and related benefits paid to terminated employees affected by the closings and asset impairment charges. The
Company recognizes liabilities for these exit and disposal activities at fair value in the period in which the liability is incurred. Asset
impairment charges related to the closure of manufacturing facilities are based on the Company’s best estimate of expected sales
prices, less related selling expenses, for assets to be sold. The recognition of restructuring and asset impairment charges for exit and
disposal activities involves significant judgment by management. Management reassesses its accrual of restructuring and asset
impairment charges each reporting period. Any change in estimated restructuring and related asset impairment charges is recognized
in the period of change.

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment, are evaluated for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable through the estimated undiscounted future cash flows from the
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use of those assets. When any such impairment exists, the related assets are written down to fair value. Long-lived assets to be
disposed of by sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, are no longer depreciated and are
reported separately as “assets held for sale” in the consolidated balance sheets.

Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
151, “Inventory Costs: an Amendment to ARB No. 43” (“SFAS 151”). This statement clarifies the types of costs that should be
expensed rather than capitalized as inventory. This statement also clarifies the circumstances under which fixed overhead costs, such
as abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and wasted material, associated with operating facilities involved
in inventory processing should be expensed or capitalized. The provisions of this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 135, 2005. Consequently, the Company will adopt the standard in 2006. The Company has not completed its assessment of
the impact, if any, that this statement will have on its financial position or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB revised Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”).
This statement, which addresses accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment
transactions, is a revision of SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” This statement requires a public entity to measure the cost of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award (with limited exceptions). The
Statement also requires the recognition of compensation expense for the fair value of any unvested stock option awards outstanding at
the date of adoption. This statement establishes that the cost will be recognized over the vesting period during which an employee is
required to provide services in exchange for the award. The provisions of this statement are effective as of the beginning of the first
interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. Consequently, the Company will adopt the standard in the fourth
quarter of 2005. The Company does not believe that SFAS 123R will have a material impact on its financial position or results of
operations.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates which could impact its
results of operations and financial condition. The Company manages its exposure to these risks through its normal operating and
financing activities and through the use of interest rate swap agreements with respect to interest rates.

The Company’s obligations under its lines of credit, industrial revenue bonds and term loans, all bear interest at variable rates. The
Company’s outstanding debt (including current maturities) as of November 30, 2004, amounted to $1.0 million under the Company’s
revolving credit line, $4.6 million under the industrial revenue bonds, $15.4 million under Term Loan A and $2.2 million under Term
Loan B. The Company has entered into interest rate swap agreements that, in effect, fix the rate of interest on the industrial revenue
bonds at 4.7% through 2006 and Term Loan A at 4.1% through 2010. The notional principal values of the swap agreements are
substantially equal to the outstanding principal balance of the corresponding debt instruments. A fluctuation in market interest rates of
one percentage point (or 100 basis points) would not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial
condition.

For imported products, the Company generally negotiates firm pricing with its foreign suppliers, for periods typically of up to one
year. The Company accepts the exposure to exchange rate movements beyond these negotiated periods without using derivative
financial instruments to manage this risk. The majority of the Company’s imports are purchased from countries such as China, whose
currencies have been pegged to the U.S. Dollar, negating much of the Company’s exposure to foreign currency fluctuation. However,
in November 2004, China’s top financial officials announced that fundamental preparations had been made to allow the Yuan’s
exchange rate to fluctuate on a limited basis without regard to changes in the U.S. Dollar. These and other remarks intensified market
speculation that China may adopt a market-oriented currency and allow the Yuan to fluctuate in value relative to the U.S. Dollar.

Since the Company transacts its imported product purchases in U.S. Dollars, a relative decline in the value of the U.S. Dollar could
increase the cost of the Company’s imported products and adversely impact sales volume and profit margin during affected periods.
However, the Company generally expects to reflect substantially all of the effect of any price changes from suppliers in the price it
charges for its imported products.
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ITEM 8.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The financial statements listed in Item 15(a) of this report are incorporated herein by reference and are filed as a part of thisreport.

Certain Non-GAAP Statements

The Company, in its Annual Report to Shareholders (of which this annual report on Form 10-K is a part), under the heading “Financial
Highlights,” has reported net income and earnings per share both including and excluding the impact of restructuring and special
charges. The net income and earnings per share figures excluding the impact of restructuring and special charges are “non-GAAP”
measures. The Company provides this information because management believes this information is useful to investors in evaluating
the Company’s ongoing operations.

EBIT and EBITDA Information

Set forth below is the Company’s earnings before interest and taxes, or EBIT, and earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation
and amortization, or EBITDA, for each of the last five years ended November 30, 2004. This information has been derived from the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. For each period presented, EBIT and EBITDA have been reconciled to the Company’s
net cash provided by operating activities. The Company provides these non-GAAP measures because it believes they are widely
accepted financial indicators of the Company’s liquidity. This information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements, including the related Notes, and Management’s Discussion and Analysis included elsewhere in this annual report
on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2004.

For the Years Ended November 30,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities.............c........ $ 7,449 $42,107 $ 5,695 £20,460 $16,379
Net increase (decrease) in assets and liabilities, net of
effects of aCqUISTHION ....covevireiiiiriciicce s, 24,834 (10,930) 19,915 (3,606) 7,531
Gain (loss) on disposal of property and equipment ....... 27 85 5 59 (11
Restructuring and related asset impairment charge ....... (1,604) (1,470) (881)
Provision for doubtful accounts.......cccccooevvereevveccnn e, (1,255) (1,148) (961) AR (736)
Deferred tax Provision .......cocceeerevcrnrenenes veonerecenneneenne (41) (2,300) 634 295 (782)
Non-cash ESOP €OSt..c.viviiiiiiiiieiiniet e (3,784) (2,910) (1,794) (1,514) (678)
Depreciation and amortization...........cccoeerervrrvres e (7.422) (8.724) (8,103) (1.592) (6.689)
NE INCOME. ..cvivieieiriieiitcictees ettt e 18,204 14,710 15,391 6,510 14,914
TNCOME tAXES oot e 11,720 8,690 9,394 3,640 7,995
INLETESt EXPEISE .ovvivieeieveeiiiieeririeeiee cerererreas e e ene s 1.869 2.638 2.094 2,140 830
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT)..... 31,793 26,038 26,879 12,290 23,739
Depreciation and amortization......c....ccceececeerereere cnees 7,422 8.724 8.103 7.592 6.689
Earnings before interest, income taxes,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) ................ $39,215 $34,762 $34,982 $19,882 $30.428

ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Based on their most recent review, which was made as of the end of the Company’s fourth quarter ended November 30, 2004, the
Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures are effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that
it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s
management, including its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure and are effective to provide reasonable assurance that such information is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) rules and forms.
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Management’s Report on Internal Centrol over Financial Reporting

In accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and SEC rules thereunder, management has conducted an assessment of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2004. Management’s report regarding that assessment is
included with the financial statements beginning on page F-1 of this report and is incorporated herein by reference.

Changes in Internal Controls

There have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting for the Company’s fourth quarter ended
November 30, 2004, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

On February 18, 2005, the Company renewed the revolving credit line under its credit facility with Bank of America, N.A., Wachovia
Bank, National Association, and Branch Banking & Trust Co. of Virginia. The new maturity date for the revolving credit line is
March 1, 2008. The other terms and conditions applicable to the revolving credit line, including the financial covenants regarding
minimum tangible net worth, debt service coverage, the ratio of funded debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation,
amortization, and maximum capital expenditures, remain unchanged.

Hooker Furniture Corporation
Part IT1

In accordance with General Instruction G (3) of Form 10-K, the information called for by Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 of Part III is
incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting of Shareholders scheduled to be held
March 30, 2005, except for:

o information concerning the executive officers of the Company, which is included in Part I of this report under the caption
“Executive Officers of Hooker Furniture Corporation,” and

¢ a copy of the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which is available on the Company’s website at
www.hookerfurniture.com.

Amendments of and waivers from the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics will be posted to the Company’s website
when permitted by applicable SEC and NASDAQ rules and regulations.
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Hooker Furniture Corporation

Part IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Documents filed as part of this report on Form 10-K:
)] The following financial statements are included in this report on Form 10-K:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 30, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the years in the three-year period ended November 30, 2004
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended November 30, 2004
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for each of the years in the three-year period ended November 30, 2004

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2) Financial Statement Schedules:

Financial Statement Schedules have been omitted because the information required has been separately disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements or related notes.

(b) Exhibits:

31

3.2

4.1
4.2

43

10.1

10.2

10.3(2)

10.3(b)

10.3(c)

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended March 28, 2003 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the quarter ended February 28, 2003)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 10 (SEC File No. 000-25349))

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company (See Exhibit 3.1)
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (See Exhibit 3.2)

Credit Agreement, dated April 30, 2003, between Bank of America, N.A., and the Company (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the quarter ending May 31, 2003)

Pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item 601(b)(4)(iii), instruments evidencing long-term debt less than 10% of the Company’s
total assets have been omitted and will be furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.

Form of Salary Continuation Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 10 (SEC File No. 000-25349))*

Form of Split Dollar Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form 10 (SEC File No. 000-25349))*

Form of Benefit Termination Agreement dated December 31, 2003, between the Company and certain of its executive
officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the quarter
ended February 29, 2004)*

Form of Executive Life Insurance Agreement dated December 31, 2003, between the Company and certain of its executive

officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the quarter
ended February 29, 2004)*

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan effective as of December 1, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the
Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the quarter ended February 29, 2004)*
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10.3(d)

10.4

10.5(a)

10.5(b)

10.5(c)

10.5(d)

10.6(a)

10.6(b)

10.6(c)

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11(a)

10.11(b)

10.11(c)

10.11(d)
10.12

10.13(a)

Summary of Director Compensation dated January 12, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC File No. 000-25349) dated January 12, 2005)

Lease Agreement, dated June 11, 2004, between C. Presley Properties, LLC and Bradington-Young LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the quarter ended August 31, 2004)

Commitment Letter renewing the Branch Banking & Trust Company of Virginia (“BB&T”) Credit Line and related
Promissory Note, each dated April 19, 2002, between BB&T and the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of the Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the quarter ended May 31, 2002)

Commitment Letter renewing and increasing the BB&T Credit Line and related Promissory Note, each dated June 24,
2002, between BB&T and the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC
File No. 000-25349) for the quarter ended May 31, 2002)

Commitment Letter, dated April 30, 2003, between BB&T and the Company, renewing the BB&T Credit Line
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the quarter ended
May 31, 2003)

Commitment Letter, dated May 17, 2004, and related Promissory Note, dated April 30, 2004, between BB&T and the
Company, renewing the BB&T Credit Line (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC
File No. 000-25349) for the quarter ended May 31, 2004)

SunTrust Term Loan, dated September 18, 2000, between the Company and SunTrust Bank (including related Term Note
and Negative Pledge Agreement) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company’s Form 10-K (SEC No. 000-
25349) for the year ended November 30, 2000)

Loan Modification Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2002, with respect to the SunTrust Term Loan, between the
Company and SunTrust Bank (including related Renewal Term Note dated January 2, 2003) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.4(b) of the Company’s Form 10-K (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the year ended November 30, 2002)

Second Loan Modification Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2003, with respect to the SunTrust Term Loan, between the
Company and SunTrust Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC File No. 000-
25349) for the quarter ended February 28, 2003)

Credit Agreement, dated September 18, 2000, between the Company and the Hooker Furniture Corporation Employee
Stock Ownership Plan Trust (including related Non-Recourse Promissory Note and Stock Pledge Agreement)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Company’s Form 10-K (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the year ended
November 30, 2000)

Credit Agreement, dated April 30, 2003, between Bank of America, N.A., and the Company (See Exhibit 4.3)

Amended, Restated and Substituted Promissory Note, dated April 2, 2003, between Bank of America, N.A., and the
Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the
quarter ended February 28, 2003)

Lease, dated November 1, 2002, between International Home Furnishings Center and the Company (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Company’s Form 10-K (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the year ended November 30, 2002)

Lease, dated March 14, 1994, between Fred B. Caffey (the “Caffey Lease™) and the Company (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10 (SEC File No. 000-25349))

Addendum, dated October 26, 2002, to the Caffey Lease (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Company’s
Form 10-K (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the year ended November 30, 2002)

Addendum, dated September 12, 2003, to the Caffey Lease (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10(c) of the
Company’s Form 10-K (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2004)

Addendum, dated August 23, 2004, to the Caffey Lease **

Lease, dated September 26, 2003, between Frith Construction Company, Inc. and the Company (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.14 of the Company’s Form 10-K (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the year ending November 30, 2003)

Sublease, dated January 29, 2003, between Pulaski Furniture Corporation and the Company (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 of the Company’s Form 10-K (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2002)
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10.13(b)

10.14

21

31.1
31.2

321

32.2

Amendment Number 1, dated March 20, 2003, to the Sublease between Pulaski Furniture Corporation and the Company
{(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the fiscal quarter
ended May 31, 2003)

Lease dated September 2, 2003, between Commonwealth Boulevard Associates LLC and the Company (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Form 10-Q (SEC File No. 000-25349) for the quarter ended August 31, 2003)

List of Subsidiaries:

Bradington-Young LLC, a Virginia limited liability company
Triwood, Inc., a Virginia corporation

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Company’s principal executive officer **
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Company’s principal financial officer **

Rule 13a-14(b) Certification of the Company’s principal executive officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 **

Rule 13a-14(b) Certification of the Company’s principal financial officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 **

*Management contract or compensatory plan
** Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HOOKER FURNITURE CORPORATION

February 22, 2005 {s/ Paul B. Toms, Jr.
Paul B. Toms, Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ _Paul B. Toms, Jr. Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and February 22, 2005
Paul B. Toms, Jr. Director (Principal Executive Officer)

s/ Douglas C. Williams President, Chief Operating Officer and February 22, 2005
Douglas C. Williams Director

s/ _E. Larry Ryder Executive Vice President - Finance and February 22, 2005
E. Larry Ryder Administration (Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ _R. Gary Armbrister Chief Accounting Officer February 22, 2005
R. Gary Armbrister (Principal Accounting Officer)

s/ W. Christopher Beeler, Jr. Director February 22, 2005
W. Christopher Beeler, Jr.

/s/ _John L. Gregory, 1I Director February 22, 2005
John L. Gregory, III

/s A. Frank Hooker, Jr. Director February 22, 2005
A. Frank Hooker, Jr.

/s/ Mark F. Schreiber Director February 22, 2005
Mark F. Schreiber

/s/ _Robert A. Taylor Director February 22, 2005
Robert A. Taylor

/s/ L. Dudley Walker Director February 22, 2005
L. Dudley Walker

{8/ Henry G. Williamson, Jr. Director February 22, 2005
Henry G. Williamson, Jr.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Hooker Furniture Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hooker Furniture Corporation and subsidiaries as of November 30, 2004 and
2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows and shareholders’ equity for each of the years in the two-year period ended
November 30, 2004. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these corsolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Hooker
Furniture Corporation and subsidiaries as of November 30, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
years in the two-year period ended November 30, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of
Hooker Furniture Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and ourreport

dated February 21, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over
financial reporting.

KPre P

Greensboro, North Carolina
February 21, 2005

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders of
Hooker Fumiture Corporation and Subsidiary
Martinsville, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows of Hooker Furniture Corporation
and subsidiary for the year ended November 30, 2002. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the results of Hooker Furniture
Corporation and subsidiary operations and their cash flows for the year ended November 30, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

6‘0 O'Audnmn, Lif

Richmond, Virginia
December 13, 2002, except for Note 12, presented in the 2002 Annual Report, which is as of January 2, 2003 and Note 17 of the 2003
Annual Report which is as of December 19, 2003




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Hooker Fumiture Corporation:

We have audited management's assessment, included in the Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that
Hooker Fumniture Corporation maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2004, based on
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSQO). Hooker Furniture Corporation's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company ’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that Hooker Furniture Corporation maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of November 30, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion,
Hooker Furniture Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of November
30, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Hooker Furniture Corporation and subsidiaries as of November 30, 2004 and 2003, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended November
30, 2004, and our report dated February 21, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

KPMme P

Greensboro, North Carolina
February 21, 2005



MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

To the Shareholders of
Hooker Furniture Corporation and Subsidiary
Martinsville, Virginia

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Exchange
Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting based
on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Based on the Company’s evaluation under that framework, management concluded that the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of November 30, 2004. Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2004 has been audited by KPMG, LLP, the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports which are included herein.

Pul B e

Paul B. Toms, Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
February 21, 2005

£ B/

E. Larry Ryder
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
February 21, 2005




HOOKER FURNITURE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

As of November 30, 2004 2003
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equIvalents ............ccocoviiiie it $ 9,230 $ 14,859
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts
of $1,341 and $991 oneach date ....o.ocvocvvriiiiiic e 40,960 37,601
INVENTOTIES 1 oivieie ittt e et e et e e et e e etee e e en s 69,735 42,442
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ......c.oooecveeevivriierieeeeirenieeeieen. 3,540 3,924
Assets held fOr Sale......c.ooviiiiiiiiie e 5,376
Total CUITENT ASSELS ....ocvviiieiei ettt 128,841 98,826
Property, plant and eqUIpmMent, NEt.......c.cocveveeeririrrirrrieieere e 44,142 53,582
GOOAWILL ...t e 2,396 2,396
INtANGIDIE ASSELS...cviireiiirietiiiiii it cee et err ettt et eete s eee s et e esse b etb st et s 4,765 4,940
ONET @SS ... i iiiiie ettt et 8.774 7,355
TOLAL @SSELS........iiiiieicteicietcie ettt $188,918 $167,099

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current liabilities

Trade accounts PAYabIe ..........c.oooivieiiieieii et $ 14,930 $ 6,945
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits .......occcovviiiiiiciiiiii e 7,090 5,476
Other aCCrued EXPENSES .....vevvviririeierieeie ettt ettt sab et e e ere e ebeeee e esaens 3,011 2,920
Current maturities of long-term debt .........ocoovirvi i 6,671 8,671
Total current lHabilities .......ocovvvvieee e 31,702 24,012
Long-term debt, excluding current maturities ............cccoeveceeeerreneneinerieeennans 16,495 22,166
Deferred COMPENSAtION . ......c....ccvuiiciiirieeeiieciveecre ettt ereeeirresraeesiveeease e 2,775 3,094
Other long-term HabilitIes .......c.ccecirieiiiiis e 1.361 1,563
TOtal HHAbIITIES ...ttt ettt 52,333 50,835

Shareholders’ equity
Common stock, no par value, 20,000 shares authorized,

14,475 shares issued and outstanding on each date..........cccccceevivirenrnnne. 7,385 4,609
Unearned ESOP shares, 2,708 and 2,870 shares on each date ..................... (16,927) (17,935)
Retained armings ..ocvoecveeeiieieeeie et 146,886 131,468
Accumulated other comprehensive 0SS ..o (759) (1.878)

Total shareholders’ eqUILY ........cccoeriiiriiiiiiiere et 136,585 116.264

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity...............ccccevvevvviiresreiennann. $188,918 $167,099

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



HOOKER FURNITURE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except per share data)

For The Years Ended November 30, 2004 2003 2002
NEE SALES..cuiiiiicii ettt $345,944 $309,005 $248,346
COSt O SALES ..ottt 250,467 226.880 179,558
GIOSS PIOTIE c.evinviiie et 95,477 82,125 68,788
Selling and administrative eXpenses........ccovvererieereeienreeniennseennes 62,707 54,903 42,469
Restructuring and asset impairment charges ...........cccceeeeeiinennen, __1.604 _1.470 -
Operating INCOME ....c.vcuirueeireireiireeniersnieesteeseenreesreescairesaens 31,166 25,752 26,319
Other INCOIME, NEL ...uvvieciveiciiieeiee et e e erteerrr e eeeeeereessaeeesrveseneeens __ 627 286 560
Income before interest and INCome taXes ..oovvvvvvvvvveeerrnverrinnnn, 31,793 26,038 26,879
[NEEIESt EXPEINISE . ..ovviieiiiieerieerieenieesteeeietertreesreeereeseesbeentressaenrnens __1.869 _ 2,638 2,094
Income before INCOME taAXES .ovvveveceirreeiiiirreereerriree e 29,924 23,400 24,785
INCOME tAXES ..eeviiieeiiic ittt et e s s e _11.720 _ 8.690 9.394
NELINCOME .ottt S_18.204 $_14.710 $_15.391

Earnings per share:
Basic and diluted.........coovieeiiiiiiiree e S___1.56 $___1.28 $ 1.36

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




HOOKER FURNITURE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

For The Years Ended November 30, 2004 2003 2002
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received fTOm CUSLOMETS .....oveiivieeeeee e e $342,969 $311,169 $244,376
Cash paid to suppliers and employees .......ccoceovivirerieiiis e (322,350) (257,427) (230,982)
Income taxes Paid, NEL .....cccoverrir s vttt ae e (11,981) (9,436) (5,980)
Interest Paid, NET ....ccvivviouiieeieieee et et e ere s (1.189) (2,199) (1.719)
Net cash provided by operating activities ........c.cocoeeereeeenverris venene 7,449 42.107 5.695

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment...........c.ccocoovveiiniinns v (3,702) (3,974) (6,082)

Acquisition of Bradington-Young, net of cash acquired .................... (22,083)

Collection on note from the sale of the Kernersville, N.C. plant........ 900

Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment..............cooconernee. 181 92 18
Net cash used in investing aCtIVItIES ......cccoovrvvivviieiirierins ceeerereeneeas (2,621) (25.965) (6.064)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from long-term debt..........ccoveviviiecienet e, 2,000 77,319 3,000

Payments on long-term debt ........ccooooiiiiiiiiieie e 9,671) (75,258) (5,208)

Payments to terminate interest rate swap agreements.............c.ccce.e.e. (3,205)

Cash dividends paid.........cocoeverevrenieeie et et (2,786) (2,455) (1,866)

Purchase and retirement of common Stock .........ccooveeeiivviiiis ceeene, (1.167)
Net cash used in financing activVities .......uecvevriercriinieeies cresierrenis (10.457) (3.599) (5,241)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents......................... (5,629) 12,543 (5,610)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year..........................c.co... 14.859 2316 7.926

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .............c..ccccoonniin i, $_9.230 $_14.859 $_2316

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided

by operating activities:

INEEITICOITIC .ot eee e et e e ee e s e e s e e ee eemeeeeeseteereeeressaneeenean $ 18,204 $ 14,710 $ 15,391
Depreciation and amortization.........cccceeevveeeeiieeres crveeeeie e e e 7,422 8,724 8,103
NON-CASH ESOP COSturviiiiiriiiiiiiiiiie e et een avesrnne s 3,784 2,910 1,794
Restructuring and asset impairment charges............ccooeeiviieii e 1,604 1,470
Gain on disposal Of ProPerty......cccvvvvriieiesres e, 27 (8%) %)
Provision for doubtful acCOUNtS.......c.oooeivieeiiiiii e, 1,255 1,148 961
Deferred income tax provision (benefit)........c..covveivvvivencs v 41 2,300 (634)

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisition:
Trade 1eceivables.......ccoeviiviiiiiiiiieecs e (4,614) 584 (5,302)
INVEIIOTIES 1. iiieieeiiceee et ettt ettt srrsaeerae e e e (27,333) 18,641 (21,437)
Prepaid expenses and Other assets .......cccvveviieieninicrs veerivnnieeens (720) (1,250) (267
Trade accounts payable ... e 7,985 (448) 1,339
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits .........ccocoeeveviviiiiin e 647 (2,596) 1,233
ACCrUed INCOME tAXES. .c.vevieiiereereereriireeiss svesreetaeraesresve e sseeerene on (308) (2,861) 3,169
Other accrued EXPEenses ......cuoviveriieerereris et see e 1,103 (1,704) 601
Other long-term Labilities .......ccccovereiiiriieiie e, (1.594) 564 749
Net cash provided by operating activities ......c..cccoceevrveerecrnenen. $__7.449 $.42.107 $_5,695

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HOOKER FURNITURE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands, except per share data)

For the Three Years Ended November 30, 2004

Accumulated
Unearned Other Total
Common Stock ESOP Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares  Amount  Shares Earnings Loss Equity
Balance at November 30, 2001 .......ccccovevvecvrirnannnn. 14,608 $2,789  $(20,793) § 97,432 $(1,687) $ 77,741
NEL INCOME ...vvevieiriie ettt vt eveereesreesr e areens 15,391 15,391
Change in unrealized loss on interest rate swap....... (246) (246)
Total comprehensive iNCOME .........cccevververcecennnn 15,145
Cash dividends ($0.19 per share) .............ccccoevvnnnn.. (1,866) (1,866)
Purchase and retirement of common stock .............. (133) (26) (1,141) (1,167)
ESOP COSE.vvviiriiriiee it ettt 262 1,532 1,794
Reclassification of shares held by ESOP
to retained arnings......ccocvvveeverrievrerirree voeeierinene 9,397 9,397
Balance at November 30, 2002 ........c..ccoceennnnn. 14,475 3,025 (19,261) 119,213 (1,933) 101,044
NELINCOME ...ttt e evee et ere e 14,710 14,710
Change in unrealized loss on interest rate swap....... 55 55
Total comprehensive iNCOME ........ccccceevrvvercrercenennn 14.765
Cash dividends (3$0.22 per share) .........ccocevervrriennn. (2,455) (2,455)
ESOP COSt ..ottt e, 1,584 1,326 2,910
Balance at November 30, 2003 .........ccooveenennn. 14,475 4,609 (17,935) 131,468 (1,878) 116,264
NELINCOME ....oiiiiiieeeieeeree et e 18,204 18,204
Change in unrealized loss on interest rate swap....... 1,119 1,119
Total comprehensive iNCOME ..........cccevvevcrneccernn e, 19,323
Cash dividends ($0.24 per share) ..........cccoeeeerinnns (2,786) (2,786)
ESOP COSE ..vviiviviiiieeeeects st e 2,776 _1,008 3,784
Balance at November 30,2004 ...................... 14475 $1,385 $(16,927) $146.886 $_(759) $136.585

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




HOOKER FURNITURE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollar and share amounts in tables, except per share amounts, in thousands unless otherwise indicated)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business

Hooker Furniture Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”) manufacture and import residential household furniture for sale to
wholesale and retail merchandisers located principally in North America.

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Hooker Furniture Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
Triwood, Inc., Bradington-Young LLC and Christopher Coleson LLC (a wholly owned subsidiary of Bradington-Young LLC). All

material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Certain items in the consolidated financial statements and the notes to the consolidated financial statements for periods prior to 2004
have been reclassified to conform to the 2004 method of presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company invests temporarily unused cash balances in liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased.
Cash equivalents are stated at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates market.

Trade Accounts Receivable

Substantially all of the Company’s trade accounts receivable are due from retailers and dealers in the residential home furnishings
market, which consists of a large number of entities with a broad geographical dispersion. The Company continually performs credit
evaluations of its customers and generally does not require collateral. The Company’s upholstery subsidiary factors substantially all of
its receivables on a non-recourse basis. Accounts receivable are reported net of allowance for doubtful accounts. The activity in the
allowance for doubtful accounts was:

For The Years Ended November 30,

2004 2003 2002

Balance at beginning of YEar........c.cocivvieieiiriee e s $ 991 $ 800 $650
Allowance for doubtful accounts acquired in the purchase

Of Bradington-YOUNEZ ......cccooeoiiiauiiirieie et ettt e ere e s 42
Non-cash charges to cost and eXpenses.....c..cocoveeriirioraes ceire e 1,255 1,148 961
Less uncollectible receivables written off, net of recoveries....................... (905) (999) (811)

Balance at end 0f YEAT.....ccvovvruiuiiii et e e s $1,341 $_991 $800

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method, or market.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, less allowances for depreciation. Provision for depreciation has been computed
(generally by the declining balance method) at annual rates that will amortize the cost of the depreciable assets over their estimated
useful lives.

Software Costs

Certain costs incurred in connection with developing or obtaining computer software for internal use that has a useful life of greater
than one year are capitalized. These costs are amortized over five years or less, and generally over three years. The Company
capitalized software costs of $1.1 million in 2004, $1.8 million in 2003 and $2.7 million in 2002. Additionally, the Company acquired
software valued at $1.8 million in the Bradington-Young acquisition in January 2003. The unamortized balance of software costs was
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HOOKER FURNITURE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Continued

{Dollar and share amounts in tables, except per share amounts, in thousands unless otherwise indicated)

$4.5 million at November 30, 2004, $6.1 million as of November 30, 2003 and $5.9 million as of November 30, 2002. Software
amortization expense was $2.8 million in 2004, $3.4 million in 2003 and $3.2 million in 2002.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred income taxes reflect the expected future tax
consequences of differences between the financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in
effect in the years in which those differences are expected to reverse.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company uses interest rate swap agreements to manage variable interest rate exposure on the majority of its long-term debt. The
Company’s objective for holding these derivatives is to decrease the volatility of future cash flows associated with interest payments
on its variable rate debt. The Company does not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading purposes. The Company accounts for
its interest rate swap agreements as cash flow hedges. For derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of changes
in the fair value of the derivative is initially reported in “accumulated other comprehensive income or loss” on the consolidated
balance sheets and subsequently reclassified to interest expense when the hedged exposure affects income (i.e. as interest expense
accrues on the related outstanding debt). Differences between the amounts paid and amounts received under the swap agreements are
recognized in interest expense. The ineffective portion of cash flow hedges is recognized in income immediately. The notional
principal values of the swap agreements are substantially equal to the outstanding principal balance of the corresponding debt
instruments.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value for each of the Company’s financial instruments (consisting of cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts
receivable and payable, and accrued liabilities) approximates fair value because of the short-term nature of those instruments. The fair
value of the Company’s industrial development revenue bonds and term loans is estimated based on the quoted market rates for
similar debt with a similar remaining maturity. On November 30, 2004 and 2003, the carrying value of the industrial development
revenue bonds and term loans approximated fair value. The fair value of the Company’s interest rate swap agreements is based on
values provided by the issuers.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes sales revenue when title and the risk of loss pass to the customer, which occurs at the time of shipment.
Sales are recorded net of allowances for trade promotions, estimated product returms and other discounts.

Shipping and Handling Costs
Amounts billed to customers that represent shipping and handling are reported as net sales. The Company’s shipping and handling

costs, which include all costs to warehouse and distribute goods to customers, are classified in selling and administrative expenses and
amounted to $12.4 million in 2004, $11.4 million in 2003 and $8.7 million in 2002.




HOOKER FURNITURE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Continued

(Dollar and share amounts in tables, except per share amounts, in thousands unless otherwise indicated)

Advertising

The Company offers advertising rebates to certain customers based on sales volume. The Company may also provide signage,
catalogs and other point-of-purchase materials to its customers and may reimburse advertising and other costs incurred by its
customers for promoting the Company’s products. The cost of these programs does not exceed the fair value of the benefit received.
The costs of the Company’s rebate advertising programs are charged against net sales based on customer sales volume. The Company
charges the cost of point-of-purchase materials (including signage and catalogs) to selling and administrative expense as incurred.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 144 (“SFAS No. 144”) provides a single accounting model for long-lived assets to be
disposed. SFAS No.144 also changes the criteria for classifying an asset as “held for sale,” broadens the scope of businesses to be
disposed of that qualify for reporting as discontinued operations and changes the timing of recognizing losses on such operations.

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment, are evaluated for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
mndicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable through the estimated undiscounted future cash flows from the
use of those assets. When any such impairment exists, the related assets are written down to fair value. Long-lived assets to be
disposed of by sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, are no longer depreciated and are
reported separately as “assets held for sale” in the consolidated balance sheets.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company acquired goodwill and certain intangible assets in connection with its purchase of Bradington-Young in January 2003.
The principal intangible assets acquired were trademarks and trade names. Goodwill, trademarks and trade names have indefinite
lives and are not amortized but are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that the asset
might be impaired.

The fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible assets was determined based on the earnings and cash flow capacity of those assets.
The impairment test consists of a comparison of the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible assets with their carrying amount. If
the carrying value of the indefinite-lived intangible assets exceeds their fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount
equal to that excess.

In testing goodwill for impairment, the Company compares the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying value including
goodwill. An impairment loss is recognized to the extent the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its fair value. This determination
is made at the reporting unit level and involves two steps. First, the Company determines the fair value of the reporting unit and
compares it to the reporting unit’s carrying amount. Second, if the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an
impairment loss is recognized to the extent the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that
goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit to its assets in a manner
similar to a purchase price allocation, in accordance with FASB Statement No. 141, Business Combinations. The residual fair value
resulting from this allocation is the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill.

No impairment losses have been recorded for goodwill or intangible assets through November 30, 2004.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilutive effect of securities that could

share in the earnings of the Company. Unallocated ESOP shares are not considered outstanding for purposes of calculating basic or
diluted earnings per share. As of November 30, 2004 and 2003, there were no securities that could have a dilutive effect.
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HOOKER FURNITURE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Continued
(Dollar and share amounts in tables, except per share amounts, in thousands unless otherwise indicated)

Concentrations of Risk

Because of the large number and diverse nature of the foreign factories from which the Company sources its imported products, the
Company has flexibility in the placement of products in any particular factory or country. Factories located in China have become an
important resource for the Company. In 2004, imported products sourced from China accounted for approximately 44% of import
purchases, and the largest factory in China from which the Company directly sources product accounted for approximately 16% of the
Company’s worldwide purchases of imported product. A sudden disruption in the Company’s supply chain from this factory, or from
China in general, could significantly impact the Company’s ability to fill customer orders for products manufactured at that factory or
in that country. If such a disruption were to occur, the Company believes that it would have sufficient inventory to adequately meet
demand for a three to four-month period. The Company believes that it could, most likely at higher cost, source most of the products
currently sourced in China from factories in other countries and could produce certain of those products domestically at its own
factories. However, supply disruptions and delays on selected items could occur for a six to nine-month period. If the Company were
to be unsuccessful in obtaining those products from other sources, then a sudden disruption in the Company’s supply chain from its
largest import furniture supplier, or from China in general, could have a short-term material adverse effect on the Company’s results
of operations. Given the excess capacity available in China and other low-cost producing countries, the Company believes the risks
from these potential supply disruptions are manageable.

Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
151, “Inventory Costs: an Amendment to ARB No. 43” (“SFAS 1517). This statement clarifies the types of costs that should be
expensed rather than capitalized as inventory. This statement also clarifies the circumstances under which fixed overhead costs, such
as abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and wasted material, associated with operating facilities involved
in inventory processing should be expensed or capitalized. The provisions of this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2005. Consequently, the Company will adopt the standard in 2006. The Company has not completed its assessment of
the impact, if any, that this statement will have on its financial position or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB revised Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”).
This statement, which addresses accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment
transactions, is a revision of SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” This statement requires a public entity to measure the cost of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award (with limited exceptions). The
Statement also requires the recognition of compensation expense for the fair value of any unvested stock option awards outstanding at
the date of adoption. This statement establishes that the cost will be recognized over the vesting period during which an employee is
required to provide services in exchange for the award. The provisions of this statement are effective as of the beginning of the first
interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. Consequently, the Company will adopt the standard in the fourth
quarter of 2005. The Company does not believe that SFAS 123R will have a material impact on its financial position or results of
operations.

NOTE 2 - INVENTORIES

November 30,

2004 2003

Finished fUrniture..........ocooiiiiivierees st e $66,922 $40,413
FUINItULE 10 PIOCESS .vivveeveevrarererireesteiiiat eereeereerestrsseenee e eeeans saseenes 2,258 2,538
Materials and SUPPLES. ....coviieriinceiiieriet e e 11,879 10,668
Inventories at FIFO .....ooovvoeeovveiiieiieee oot v 81,059 53,619
Reduction to LIFO Basis .........ovieeiiiiiiiciie i e sie e 11.324 11,177
INVENTOTIES. ... iririieiiie ettt sttt ettt etes bt eeereansasenas $69,735 $42.442

If the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method had been used in valuing all inventories, net income would have been $18.3 million in 2004,
$15.2 million in 2003 and $14.8 million in 2002.
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During 2003, inventory quantities were reduced, which resulted in liquidations of LIFO inventory layers carried at lower costs
prevailing in prior years as compared with current year costs. During 2003, the liquidation of LIFO inventory layers decreased cost of
sales by approximately $361,000 and increased net income by $224,000, or $0.02 per share.

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

November 30,
Depreciable Lives (In years) 2004 2003
Buildings and land improvements............c.ccccoevveevniiis cecnenne. 20-30 $ 44,948 $ 49,738
Machinery and equipment............ccocceeeeviiievenns cernenecreer e 10 42,313 48,506
Furniture and fIXTUIes ........ocoovvieieiceiccs e 3-8 24,569 24,849
OthET ..o e e 5 3.647 3.407
Total depreciable property at Cost ......oocooeeveencriniceieies v 115,477 126,500
Less accumulated depreciation........c..cocoeeiveceneccnie covecennenns 73,916 75,335
Total depreciable property, Net.........ccoooveeeeerereirs veereirines 41,561 51,165
Land ..o e et 1,771 2,287
Construction N PrOGIESS........eiovervreeiiererees seeereaseencareerereenes 810 130
Property, plant and equipment, N€t..........cviereirerreenins corenns $_44.142 $_53,582

NOTE 4 - ACQUISITION

The Company, through a wholly owned subsidiary, acquired substantially all of the assets of Cherryville, N.C.-based leather seating
specialist Bradington-Young LLC, on January 2, 2003. The results of Bradington-Young’s operations have been included in the
consolidated financial statements since that date. The Company conducts the upholstery operation under the Bradington-Young name
and specializes in upscale leather reclining and motion chairs and sofas, executive desk chairs, club chairs and stationary upholstered
furniture in the upper-medium to high-end price niches. The Company acquired the Bradington-Young operation for an aggregate
purchase price of $29.3 million, consisting of $22.1 million in cash (net of cash acquired), $6.8 million in assumed liabilities and
acquisition-related fees of $457,000. The acquisition was financed principally with $25.0 million in bank debt. See “Note 7 - Long-
Term Debt.” .

The fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
January 2, 2003

CUITEIIE ASSES 1vveuiivreteeeeieeteiteete ceesesuesteeaseebestesbaeseeaes saessassesasssaeetessaaseesssens sreasenesessesessesteess $12,277
Property, plant and eqUIPMENT. .........ccoiniiiiiieiierni et et e 9,497
GOOAWIL... .ot ettt ettt et e et et e e ee ettt eee e see e a 2,396
INtANGIDIE ASSEIS ..o.viiuieiiitiitiei et ettt ettt ee et e sse et e eetebaeteaseeas e s easeese et 2o er e ereassreeaeesens 5,100
OB BSSELS ..eovicirieeiie ettt ettt et e et et ste b e ss see e seestesbaatensee e e ebeeraes senseeseateereareeseareeanens 30
Total ASSEtS ACQUITEA. .. covi et ettt bttt et ee e e esaa e seebesbenn e 29,300
CUITENT HADIIIIES ... vttt ettt et e e st e e et e et eesaba e reeeaaeseeeeensennens 2,682
LONE-EIIN AEDT ... ittt ettt ettt e e et e e seebteeeentesesasssbaeeaasbraes seetreraeaeenereaesrres 4.073
Total liabilities @SSUIMEA ........ceivrieieriieiiereeiries rreteeirteee bbbt serteaessesssseensessessssesnens sonenes 6,755
NEt aSSEtS ACQUITEA ...o.eveeiieeieieieii ettt ettt ettt ettt ete b et e aebete e ebeseseenaas et sesnansneras $22,545
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(Dollar and share amounts in tables, except per share amounts, in thousands unless otherwise indicated)

NOTE 5 - GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

November 30,
2004 2003
GOOAWIIL. ...ttt sttt st e a et $2,396 $2.396
Non-amortizable Intangible Assets
Trademarks and trade NAMES ...........oveveeeieiiiirens et oo $4.400 $4.400
Amortizable Intangible Assets
NON-COMPELE AZTEEIMEIILS ...c.viveiirerieiriii it ettt et et seene s eaene 700 700
Less accumulated amortiZation .........c.ocoovivcriniiinine svcceiicenie e sennece e 335 160
Net CaITYING VAIUE. ..ot e nteieree ettt sttt et sbe e seen oo 365 540
INAN@IDIE ASSELS ...c.iiiriiiiircriietieiteres cetetre ettt ettt et e $4.765 $4,940

The Company acquired goodwill and certain intangible assets in connection with its purchase of Bradington-Young in January 2003.
The non-compete agreements are being amortized over four years on a straight line basis for financial reporting purposes. The
goodwill, trademarks and trade names have indefinite useful lives and consequently are not subject to amortization for financial
reporting purposes. For tax reporting purposes the goodwill and intangible assets are being amortized over 15 years on a straight line
basis.

NOTE 6 - SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

For The Year Ended
November 30. 2004
Note received in connection with the sale of equipment from the
Maiden, N.C. faCIIILY .....ccoviriiicieit ettt e $__104
For The Year Ended
November 30, 2003
Acquisition of Bradington-Young:
Fair value of assets acquired (including cash of $462).....c.ccccvvvvrrivnniiint vviicnenen, $29,300
Cash paid (including fees 0f $457) ..o s e s 22,545
Liabilities assumed (including debt of $4.1 million) .......eceevnivinicivviis e, $_6,755
Note received in connection with the sale of the Kernersville, N.C. facility.............. $__900
NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT
November 30,
2004 2003
Term LOAN A ..ottt ettt e st sbe et cte et et st et e et baeerae et beetneesrees $15,416 $17,387
Term Lo B oo et e e e n e ettt e earesarares 2,150 7,050
Revolving credit FaCILIEY ....o.ovveeriicicccereie e e 1,000
Industrial reventie BONAS .....c.o.ooiiiiiiiieiiiiie s ettt et eenes 4.600 6.400
Total long-term debt outsStanding ..........occcooveeriinins st e 23,166 30,837
LeSS CUITENE MATUTIEIES .vevvireriiiiererireere et rrereeteneriereebaneeaesesestes bevesesbenssessensasessencesens 6,671 8.671
Long-term debt, less current Mmaturiti€s...........cccvvvivieviirceeens corinieeneeererrereeseeseees e $16,495 $22,166

On January 2, 2003, the Company borrowed $25.0 million in bank debt to acquire substantially all of the assets of Bradington-Young
and to repay debt assumed as part of the acquisition. On April 30, 2003, the Company refinanced (1) the bank debt used to acquire

F-14




HOOKER FURNITURE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Continued

(Dollar and share amounts in tables, except per share amounts, in thousands unless otherwise indicated)

Bradington-Young with Term Loan B, (2) an existing term loan with Term Loan A, and (3) the Company’s revolving credit line with
anew facility. In November 2003, the Company prepaid $15.0 million on Term Loan B.

The unsecured revolving credit facility provides for borrowings of up to $15.0 million at a variable interest rate (2.6% on November
30, 2004). Up to $3.0 million of the revolving credit line may be used for the issuance of letters of credit. Interest is payable monthly.
There were borrowings of $1.0 million outstanding under the revolving credit line on November 30, 2004. No borrowings were
outstanding as of November 30, 2003. Outstanding letters of credit under that line amounted to $1.4 million as of November 30, 2004
and $1.3 million as of November 30, 2003. Based on the terms of the revolving credit line as renewed in February 2003, any principal
outstanding under the credit line will be due March 1, 2008.

The term loans bear interest at a variable rate (2.6% on November 30, 2004 and 2.1% on November 30, 2003) and are unsecured.
Principal and interest payments are due quarterly through September 1, 2010 on Term Loan A and through March 1, 2005 on Term
Loan B.

The Company entered into two interest rate swap agreements in February 2003, one that in effect provides a fixed interest rate of 4.1%
on Term Loan A through 2010 and one that in effect provided a fixed interest rate of 4.0% on Term Loan B through 2008. In
November 2003, in connection with the $15.0 million prepayment on Term Loan B, the Company terminated the related interest rate
swap agreement. See “Note 8 — Derivatives.”

The credit facility for the Company’s revolving line of credit and Term Loans A and B contains customary representations and
warranties, covenants and events of default, including financial covenants as to minimum tangible net worth, debt service coverage,
the ratio of funded debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, and maximum capital expenditures. The
Company was in compliance with these covenants as of November 30, 2004.

The industrial revenue bonds are secured by a $4.7 million letter of credit (representing the outstanding principal plus an accrued
interest component). Interest is payable monthly at a variable rate (1.7% on November 30, 2004 and 1.2% on November 30, 2003).
Scheduled principal repayments are $2.4 million in 2005 and $2.2 million in 2006. The Company has entered into an interest rate
swap agreement that in effect provides a fixed interest rate of 4.7% on its industrial development revenue bonds through 2006.

As of November 30, 2004, the Company had an aggregate $30.3 million available under its lines of credit including: (1) $12.6 million
available under its revolving credit line to fund its working capital needs and (2) $17.7 million available under additional lines of
credit to support the issuance of letters of credit. The Company utilizes letters of credit to collateralize its industrial revenue bonds,
imported inventory purchases and certain insurance arrangements. Qutstanding letters of credit on November 30, 2004, amounted to
$8.3 million.

Aggregate future maturities for the Company’s long-term debt outstanding as of November 30, 2004, were $6.7 million in 2005, $4.5
million in 2006, $2.5 million in 2007, $3.6 million in 2008, $2.8 million in 2009 and $3.1 million thereafter.

NOTE 8 - DERIVATIVES

The Company uses interest rate swap agreements to manage variable interest rate exposures on the majority of its long-term debt. The
notional principal values of the Company’s swap agreements are substantially equal to the outstanding principal balance of the
corresponding debt instruments. The Company believes that its swap agreements are highly effective in managing the volatility of
future cash flows associated with interest payments on its variable rate debt. The Company accounts for its interest rate swap
agreements as cash flow hedges.

In February 2003, the Company, in connection with the refinancing of its bank debt, terminated an interest rate swap agreement that in
effect provided a fixed interest rate of 7.4% on an existing term loan and entered into a new interest rate swap agreement. The new
agreement is on substantially the same terms as the terminated agreement, except that it in effect provides for a fixed interest rate of
4.1% through 2010 on Term Loan A. The Company’s $3.0 million payment to terminate the swap agreement is being amortized as
interest expense over the remaining repayment period for Term Loan A, resulting in an effective fixed interest rate of approximately
7.4% on Term Loan A.
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Also in February 2003, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement that in effect provided a fixed interest rate of 4.0%
through 2008 on Term Loan B. In November 2003, the Company prepaid $15.0 million on Term Loan B. In connection with the
prepayment, the Company terminated the related interest rate swap agreement. The Company incurred a loss of $204,000 to terminate
the swap agreement of which $139,000 was charged against “other income, net” in the consolidated statements of income. The
balance of the termination payment is being amortized over the remaining repayment period for Term Loan B.

The Company has also entered into an interest rate swap agreement that in effect provides a fixed interest rate of 4.7% on its industrial
development revenue bonds through 2006.

The aggregate fair market value of the Company’s swap agreements decreases when interest rates decline and increases when interest
rates rise. Interest rates declined during 2002, remained relatively constant during 2003, and increased during 2004. The decrease in
the aggregate fair market value of the effective portion of the agreements of $§759,000 after tax ($1.2 million pretax) as of November
30, 2004, and $1.9 million after tax ($3.0 million pretax) as of November 30, 2003, is reflected under the caption “accumulated other
comprehensive loss” in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company also reduced interest expense by $45,000 in 2004 and
recognized additional interest expense of $44,000 in 2003, and $170,000 in 2002, for the ineffective portion of the swap agreements’
change in value. Approximately $549,000 of the aggregate pretax decrease in fair market value of the agreements is expected to be
reclassified into earnings during the next 12 months as a component of the interest expense that will accrue on the debt.

NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Employee Stock Ownership Plan

The Company sponsors a leveraged employee stock ownership plan (the “ESOP”) to provide retirement benefits for eligible employees,
allowing them to share on a noncontributory basis in the growth of the Company and accumulate an ownership interest in the common
stock of the Company. The ESOP covers substantially all employees.

In 2000, the ESOP issued a $22.5 million note to the Company bearing interest at 8%, which has a remaining repayment term of 21 years
(the “ESOP Loan”). The proceeds from the ESOP Loan were used to purchase certain shares that are held by the plan. The ESOP will
repay the ESOP Loan using Company contributions and dividends paid with respect to substantially all allocated and unallocated shares.
The shares purchased with the proceeds of the ESOP Loan were initially pledged as collateral for the debt. The Company will release
shares to eligible employees over the remaining 21-year term of the ESOP Loan based on the amount of principal and interest paid by the
ESOP. Shares pledged as collateral (unallocated shares) are reported as “unearned ESOP shares” in theconsolidated balance sheets.

As shares are committed to be released, the Company records compensation expense based on the average daily closing price of the
Company’s common stock during the year. The shares are then treated as outstanding for purposes of computing earnings per share.
Dividends paid on allocated shares held by the ESOP are charged against retained earnings in the consolidated balance sheets. Dividends
paid on unallocated shares are in effect recorded as a reduction of principal and interest on the ESOP Loan. The cost of the ESOP,
including cash contributions, administrative costs paid by the Company and the fair market value of shares released, amounted to $3.9
million in 2004, $3.0 million in 2003 and $2.2 million in 2002.

Shares held by the ESOP:
November 30,

2004 2003

ATOCALE SRATES ...oiiuiiiiiictici et ettt et et reeera s et bees bbeearean 1,117 1,129
Shares released or committed to be released for allocation.............cccccoeevivveies e, 161 212
UNTeleased SHaTeS.....c.oiiiviiie et et e eebe st et b et e beates 2,708 2,870

Total shares held by the ESOP ..ot e e _3.986 4211

Fair value of unreleased Shares ........ccoveeiiiiiiniiit e e $63,240 $60,246
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The Company may, but is not obligated to, repurchase shares from ESOP participants. Currently, benefits are generally distributed from
the ESOP in the form of the Company’s common stock. However, benefits under a minimum share limit are distributed in the form of
cash. Prospectively, the Company does not expect to repurchase shares distributed to ESOP participants.

Employee Savings Plans

The Company sponsors two tax-qualified 401(k) plans which, in the aggregate, cover substantially all employees. These plans assist
employees in meeting their savings and retirement planning goals through employee salary deferrals and discretionary matching
contributions made by the Company. The Company made contributions to the plans amounting to $681,000 in 2004, $704,000 in
2003 and $615,000 in 2002,

Salary Continuation Agreements

The Company maintains a salary continuation program for certain management employees. The program consists of individual
agreements with participants that specify the amount of benefits to be paid upon retirement, death or disability. These are unfunded
agreements with all benefits paid solely from the general assets of the Company. The total accrued liabilities relating to this program
were $2.4 million (excluding the aggregate liability under the supplemental executive retirement plan described in the following
paragraphs) as of November 30, 2004 and $3.3 million as of November 30, 2003. These amounts are included in “accrued salaries,
wages and benefits” and “other long-term liabilities” in the consolidated balance sheets. The cost of the program amounted to
$110,000 in 2004, $284,000 in 2003 and $541,000 in 2002.

Changes to Executive Compensation Arrangements

In December 2003, the Company modified executive compensation arrangements for certain executives of the Company. The
modifications were accomplished through the termination of existing salary continuation agreements and split-dollar life insurance
agreements and the adoption of a new life insurance program and a new supplemental executive retirement plan which cover each of
these executives. In addition, each executive transferred to the Company his ownership interest in the life insurance policy or policies
underlying his split-dollar life insurance agreement and each executive received a cash payment from the Company equal to the
amount of premiums the executive had previously paid with respect to the life insurance policy or policies underlying his split-dollar
life insurance agreement.

The new life insurance program provides death benefit protection for each executive during employment. Coverage under the program
automatically terminates when the executive terminates employment with the Company for any reason, other than death, or when the
executive attains age 65, whichever occurs first. The life insurance policies funding the new life insurance program are owned by the
Company. The cash surrender value of those life insurance policies amounted to $1.4 million as of November 30, 2004.

The new supplemental executive retirement plan provides for a monthly supplemental retirement benefit based on the executive’s final
average monthly compensation as defined in the plan, payable for a 15-year period following the executive’s termination of
employment, subject to a vesting schedule that may vary for each participant in the plan. In addition, the monthly retirement benefit
for each participant in the plan, regardless of age, will become fully vested and the present value of all plan benefits will be paid to
participants in a lump sum upon a change in control of the Company (as defined in the plan). Benefits are payable from the general
assets of the Company. The Company accounts for its obligation to each participant on the accrual basis. The aggregate liability for
all participants under the supplemental executive retirement plan amounted to $597,000 as of November 30, 2004.
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NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes:

For The Years Ended November 30,

2004 2003
Current expense
Federal.....ccoiiiiiiee ettt e $10,600 $5.885
SEALE ..ottt et ettt one 1,079 505
Total CUITENt EXPEIISE ..evviieriie i eie et ceeerrreeea s e naeeraesse e ees seemeeeenneenes 11,679 6.390
Deferred expense
Federal......oo e e e e N 2,244
SEALE 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et r et et e eae et ot 48 36
Total deferred eXPense ......ccovviciiieiiiiicie et e e 41 2.300
INCOME tAX EXPEISE ..eruiriiie sttt ettt caresias s ebeseesrece e $11.720 $8.690

The effective income tax rate differed from the federal statutory tax rate as follows:

2002

$ 8,814
1.214
10,028

(527)
(107)
(634)

§.0.304

For The Years Ended November 30,

2004 2003 2002
Income taxes at StatUtOTY TAC........cciiviiiuiiiiiice it et teeeeie e s e 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increase (decrease) in tax rate resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal benefit.......c...ccooevivviiviiciins e, 24 1.6 2.9
Employee stock ownership plan (ESOP)......occvviiniveiiniie e 23 1.0 (0.6)
OHET e et sttt e 0.5 (0.5) _0.6
Effective inCOme taX Tate ....c.ocvovivviiiiiieiecrce e 39.2% 37.1% 37.9%
The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities were:
November 30,
2004 2003
Assets
Deferred COmMPENSation........c.cc.oveevevieviiiies eereeteer et eeeeeee s ere e $1,133 $1,259
INEETESt TAtE SWAPS ...cvierireiere et ettt et 570 1,315
Allowance for bad debts .......cccooiiiiiiiieii e e 509 377
State INCOME tAXES ...oveiereeriieriererieeiercies cetesr et steesbessestesiees sasbesereeenns 132 136
RESLIUCTULING ..ecivieiiisireieeec et eie et trev e st saseresbeseseeseeneans _330 _ 35
Total deferred tax aSSetS.......ccovviivcieviirieriiet et e s 2.674 3,122
Liabilities
PIOPETLY ettt e e e et 2,270 2,682
INVENTOTY ..ottt sttt 1,153 801
INtangible ASSELS ...t et e 229 90
Employee benefits ....c..ocoveiviniinioini e s 809 609
L0141 OO PO USSR PP 9 _ 9
Total deferred tax liabilities .......ccccevieiiiiaiireie e 4.470 4.191
Net deferred tax Hability .........cccocveveviriieiree e $(1,796) $(1.069)

As of November 30, 2004, $1.2 million of the deferred income taxes has been classified as “other long-term liabilities” and $623,000
has been classified as “other accrued expenses” in the consolidated balance sheets. As of November 30, 2003, $1.2 million of the
deferred income taxes was classified as “other long-term liabilities” and $147,000 was classified as “prepaid expenses and other
current assets” in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company expects to fully utilize its deferred tax assets in future periods when
the amounts become deductible, consequently no valuation allowance was recorded as of November 30, 2004 or November 30, 2003.
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NOTE 11 - RESTRUCTURING CHARGES AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

In 2004, the Company recorded a $1.6 million pretax ($1.0 million after tax or $0.09 per share) restructuring and related asset
impairment charge principally related to the October 2004 closing of the Company’s Maiden, N.C. wood furniture manufacturing
facility. In 2003, the Company recorded a $1.5 million pretax ($911,000 after tax or $0.08 per share) restructuring and related asset
impairment charge related to the August 2003 closing of the Company’s Kernersville, N.C. wood furniture plant. The pretax
restructuring charges reduced operating income in 2004 and 2003 by 0.5% of net sales. The Company moved the production of
patterns and products manufactured at the Maiden and Kernersville, N.C. plants to other Company facilities.

The 2004 pretax restructuring and asset impairment charge consisted of $872,000 in severance and related benefits paid to
approximately 280 hourly and salaried employees terminated at the Maiden, N.C. facility and approximately $637,000 in related asset
impairment and other costs (principally factory disassembly costs). Substantially all of the severance benefits were paid during the
2004 fourth quarter. The 2004 charge also included an additional $95,000 for health benefits and other costs related to the 2003
closing of the Company’s Kemersville, N.C. facility. The 2003 pretax restructuring and asset impairment charges consisted of $1.1
million in severance and related benefits paid to approximately 290 hourly and salaried employees terminated at the Kernersville, N.C.
facility and $366,000 in related asset impairment costs.

The Maiden, N.C. real property, machinery and equipment, with a carrying value of $5.4 million as of November 30, 2004, have been
reclassified to “assets held for sale” included in “current assets” on the consolidated balance sheet. The carrying value of these assets
reflects fair value less estimated selling expenses. Substantially all of these assets were sold during the 2005 first quarter for an
aggregate consideration of $5.2 million in cash, net of selling expense. The Company expects that the remaining real property, which
has a carrying value of $229,000, will be sold within the next 12 months. Also in the 2005 first quarter, the Company recorded an
additional $168,000 for costs incurred in finalizing preparation of the Maiden real property for sale.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company sold the Kernersville plant and some of its equipment for an aggregate consideration
of $1.1 million ($164,000 in cash and a $900,000 note receivable). The property had an aggregate carrying value of $827,000.

In the 2003 fourth quarter, the Company: (i) reduced its accrual for restructuring and asset impairment charges related to the closing of
the Kernersville facility, principally as a result of lower than anticipated severance costs and (ii) recorded a gain on the sale of the
facility. Both of these adjustments to the accrual were offset by higher than anticipated cash payments incurred to prepare the
Kernersville facility for sale.

The following table sets forth the significant components and activity related to the accrued restructuring charges during 2003 and
2004, which are included in “accrued salaries, wages and benefits” and “other long-term liabilities™ in the consolidated balance sheets:

Severance and Asset
Related Benefits Impairment Other Total
Restructuring charges accrued .........ocoveevcvreinrecn e $1,270 $ 45 $155 $1,470
Non-cash charges........ccooeieiiiiiiii e 45 (45)
Cash PayMents ........oooviiiierirciiie e s (1,061) 271) (1,332)
Accrual adjustments........ccccoveininirernis creeeenere e (166) - 166
Balance at November 30,2003 ......cooovevii e 43 50 93
Restructuring charges accrued ........cocoooovevireecreniee s, 967 347 290 1,604
Non-cash Charges........cc.oocvvvireceii i e (347) (347)
Cash PAYMENLS ...oveiiiiiciccetn et e (642) - (115) (757)
Balance at November 30,2004 ... e $_368 $___ $225 $_3593
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NOTE 12 - QUARTERLY DATA (Unaudited)
Fiscal Quarter

First Second Third Fourth
2004
NEE SAIES .eeviieiiiiie et et ernebenas $78,222 $91,490 $84,309 $91,923
GT0SS PrOfIt oottt st e 20,412 25,486 23,140 26,439
INEE ITICOIME .vvvevrreitiereririeeinie e e reen et b sresees shenas 4,040 5,514 3,203 5,447
Basic and diluted earnings per share ..........c..ccoocveirnnen. $ 035 $ 047 $ 0.27 $ 0.406
2003
NEE SALES covvveviieieieecirteirie et sevrereerees st berestecaenesanns erereenes $74,475 $80,115 $74,749 $79,665
GTOSS PIOfIE cooeieevieiiiie et sttt e 20,522 20,642 19,676 21,285
NELINCOMMIE 1..vvvvieiienicireirieeiiiae sreererereeneaesbe e sre s ebes serens 4,991 2,595 3,528 3,596
Basic and diluted earnings per share ..........cccocoeoeevinnnn, $ 044 $ 0.23 § 031 $ 031

Earnings per share for each quarter is derived using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during that quarter. Earnings
per share for the year is derived using the weighted average number of shares outstanding on an annual basis. Consequently, the sum
of earnings per share for the quarters may not equal earnings per share for the full year.

NOTE 13 - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For The Years Ended November 30,

2004 2003 2002
NEt INCOME -ttt ettt eb s ereee $18.204 $14.710 $15.391
Gain (10ss) On interest rate SWapS......c...ecverrervenerarien ean 358 (1,575) (1,860)
Less amount of swaps’ fair value reclassified to
INEEIEST EXPEIISE ...cvereirineeiieirireeecireet eeecerrarareeesebeseeeneens 1.447 1.664 1,462
Other comprehensive income (loss) before tax................ 1,805 89 (398)
Income tax (expense) benefit ........ocooeervivrivvenirins e (686) (34) 152
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax ............... 1,119 55 (246)
Comprehensive INCOME .........vveeeeereece it s $19,323 $14,765 $15.145

The amount reclassified to interest expense includes a gain of $45,000 in 2004 and losses of $44,000 in 2003 and $170,000 in 2002,
related to the ineffective portion of the interest rate swap agreements.

NOTE 14 - COMMON STOCK

In June 2001, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had authorized the repurchase of up to $3.0 million of the
Company’s common stock and announced an increase in that authorization of $2.2 million in October 2001, for an aggregate
authorization of $5.2 million. There is no expiration date for this authorization. Repurchases may be made from time to time in the
open market, or in privately negotiated transactions, at prevailing market prices that the Company deems appropriate. No shares of
common stock were repurchased by or on behalf of the Company or any “affiliated purchaser” (as defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) during fiscal 2004. Through November 30, 2004, the Company had repurchased
approximately 584,000 shares at a total cost of $2.5 million or an average of $4.29 per share. Based on the market value of the
common stock as of November 30, 2004, the remaining $2.7 million of the authorization would allow the Company to repurchase
approximately 114,000 shares, or 0.8%, of the 14.5 million shares outstanding, or 1.1% of the Company’s outstanding shares
excluding the 4.1 million shares held by the ESOP.
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NOTE 15 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is organized and reports its results of operations in one operating segment that manufactures, imports and markets
residential furniture products, principally in North America, The nature of the products, production processes, distribution methods,
types of customers and regulatory environment are similar for substantially all of the Company’s products.

NOTE 16 - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company leases warehousing facilities, showroom space, an upholstery frame plant and certain manufacturing, office and
computer equipment under leases expiring over the next five years. Rent expense was $2.4 million in 2004, $2.4 million in 2003 and
$1.7 million in 2002. Minimum future annual rental commitments under operating leases amount to $1.6 million in 2005, $1.0 million
in 2006, $633,000 in 2007, $45,000 in 2008 and $4,000 in 2009.

The Company had letters of credit outstanding totaling $8.3 million as of November 30, 2004 and $16.6 million as of November 30,
2003. The Company utilizes letters of credit to collateralize its industrial revenue bonds, imported inventory purchases and certain
insurance arrangements.

In the ordinary course of its business, the Company may become involved in legal proceedings involving contractual and employment
relationships, product liability claims, intellectual property rights and a variety of other matters. The Company does not believe that
any pending legal proceedings will have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

NOTE 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In connection with the closing of the Maiden, N.C. facility, substantially all of the real property and equipment was sold during the
2005 first quarter for an aggregate consideration of $5.2 million in cash, net of selling expenses.

On February 18, 2005, the Company renewed the revolving credit line under its credit facility with Bank of America, N.A., Wachovia
Bank, National Association, and Branch Banking & Trust Co. of Virginia. The new maturity date for the revolving credit line is
March 1, 2008. The other terms and conditions applicable to the revolving credit line, including the financial covenants regarding
minimum tangible net worth, debt service coverage, the ratio of funded debt to eamnings before interest, taxes, depreciation,
amortization, and maximum capital expenditures, remain unchanged.
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